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Dublin San Ramon
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Water, wastewater, recycled water

7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, CA 94568
phone (925) 828-0515, fax (925) 829-1180
www.dsrsd.com

December 6, 2016
To the Board of Directors and Dublin San Ramon Services District customers:
State law requires that every general purpose local government publish a complete set of audited
financial statements within six months of the close of each fiscal year. The Dublin San Ramon Services
District publishes this report to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.
The management of Dublin San Ramon Services District assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and reliability of the information in these financial statements, based upon a comprehensive system of
internal controls established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed
anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the
financial statements are free of any material misstatements.
Badawi & Associates has issued an unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the Dublin San Ramon Services
District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016. The independent auditor’s report is
located in the front of the financial section of this report.
Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.
In accordance with standards established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, the District meets the definition of a stand-alone government.
As of June 30, 2016, the District was participating in two joint powers authorities (JPA): the LivermoreAmador Valley Water Management Agency (LAVWMA) and the Dublin San Ramon Services District-East
Bay Municipal Utility District Recycled Water Authority (DERWA).
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Economic Conditions

DSRSD’s service area lies within the Tri-Valley,

which is part of the East Bay region of the
San Francisco Bay Area. The service area includes all
of the City of Dublin, which is located approximately
35 miles east of San Francisco and 35 miles north
of San Jose. The service area also includes portions
of the City of San Ramon, which is located to the
north of Dublin. In addition, the District provides
wastewater services to the City of Pleasanton under
an agreement with the city. The area offers easy

Overview

access to many transportation options, including

The District was formed in 1953 as the Parks Community
Service District. The name was changed to Valley
Community Services District (VCSD) in the early 1960s.
VCSD became the vehicle for delivering local government
services, including water and wastewater services,
recreation and parks, garbage collection, and fire protection,
before city governments existed. The name of the District
was changed again in 1977 to Dublin San Ramon Services
District (DSRSD) to reflect its service areas. By 1988, the
cities of Dublin and San Ramon had incorporated and
assumed responsibility for many of the services originally
provided by the District. This allowed DSRSD to focus on
water and wastewater services. In 1999, the District began
providing a third service, recycled water. DSRSD currently
provides water, recycled water, and wastewater services to
more than 173,000 residents in Dublin, southern
San Ramon, Dougherty Valley, and Pleasanton.

and Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority

The District is governed by a board of directors that sets
policy, adopts budgets, and appoints a general manager
to run operations. Five directors are elected at-large to
overlapping four-year terms.

2

Interstates 580 and 680, Bay Area Rapid Transit
(BART), Altamont Commuter Express (ACE),
(LAVTA).
The diversified commercial base of the District’s
service area produces greater economic stability
and less volatility than more specialized economies
such as San Jose (technology) or San Francisco
(tourism and technology). Several large business
parks are located in the Tri-Valley, supporting a
healthy mix of large and small businesses. As of
September 2016, unemployment rates for the cities
of Dublin and San Ramon are 2.7 percent and 3.0
percent respectively, significantly lower than the
rates for the state (5.3 percent) or counties
(4.3 percent for Alameda and 4.5 percent for
Contra Costa). Unemployment rates also were
higher for San Francisco (3.2 percent) and San Jose
(3.8 percent).1
As reported by the East Bay Economic Alliance,
the East Bay continues to post record high
employment levels. Non-farm employment reached
1,117,200 in June 2016, a 2.3 percent increase from
June 2015. The East Bay is continuing to outpace the

Footnotes:
1. State of California Employment Development
Department, Unemployment Rates (Labor Force).
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Overview

New transit-oriented developments, such as this housing and commercial project adjacent to the West Dublin BART station, are
transforming downtown Dublin.
other regional economies, highlighting its rising role as an engine of economic

Mission
Statement

growth in the Bay Area.2 The estimated median household income is $128,737
for Dublin and $151,494 for San Ramon. 3 The housing market in the East Bay
remains strong, with increases in both assessed property values and median
existing home prices in Alameda County (6.99 percent4 and 9.9 percent, 2

Our mission is to provide
reliable and sustainable
water and wastewater
services to the communities
we serve in a safe, efficient,
and environmentally
responsible manner.

respectively) and Contra Costa County (6.01 percent5 and 6.9 percent 2).
Both Dublin and San Ramon anticipate continued growth in the coming
years. Dublin has an estimated population of 57,349, an increase of 2.69
percent over the previous year. San Ramon’s population grew 1.2 percent to
78,363.6 According to buildout projections, overall population in Dublin and
San Ramon will grow to 106,610 by 2035, an increase of 30 percent.7 The outlook for new development in the DSRSD service area remains positive for the
long term.
Drought in California is not over. For a fifth consecutive year, dry
conditions persist in many areas of the state, with restricted drinking water

Footnotes:

supplies, limited water for agriculture and the environment, and severely

2. East Bay Economic Development Alliance, East Bay
Economic Outlook 2016-17.

depleted groundwater basins. On May 9, 2016, Governor Edmund G. Brown
issued an executive order to make water conservation “a California way of

3. United States Census Bureau, 2010-2014 American
Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.

life.” The order directs regulators to develop emergency water restrictions for

4. Alameda County 2016-17 Fiscal Year Assessments.

2017 if drought persists and implement permanent, long-term improvements
in water use that improve efficiency, reduce waste, and make communities and
agriculture more resilient to future droughts. 8

5. Contra Costa County 2016-2017 County Assessment
Roll.
6. State of California Department of Finance, E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties,
and the State, January 2011-2016, with 2010 Census
Benchmark.
7. Dublin San Ramon Services District 2015 Urban
Water Management Plan, June 2016.
8. Office of Governor Edmund G. Brown. Jr., Executive
Order B-37-16.

Dublin San Ramon Services District CAFR FYE 2016

3

Achievements
Preserved Water Supplies by
Reducing Demand

Met state-mandated, long-term conservation

and dry conditions through 2040. The State of California
requires cities and water agencies to update their plans
every five years.

goal. DSRSD achieved, by a wide margin, the first of

Established a policy blueprint for future water

two water-use reduction targets required by California’s

supply management. The Board of Directors adopt-

Water Conservation Act of 2009 (SB X7-7). The act

ed a new policy to outline its long-term goals for im-

requires agencies to meet an interim conservation goal

proving reliability, diversifying supplies and conveyance

in 2015 and a final goal in 2020 that will reduce statewide

systems, increasing reuse, and continuing to permanent-

water use 20 percent. For calendar year 2015, DSRSD’s

ly reduce demand for potable water. Objectives include

potable water demand was 81 gallons per person per

increasing reliance on local and regional sources for at

day (GPCD), far better than its compliance target of 190

least 60 percent of total demand (potable and recycled),

GPCD. The District’s projected future demand also is

decreasing reliance on single sources for no more than

well below its 2020 target of 169 GPCD.

40 percent, and reducing potable water demand by

Met emergency conservation requirements.
Customers continued to respond effectively to manda-

residential customers to no more than 70 gallons per
capita per day.

tory conservation measures through a second year of

Studied costs and benefits of alternative water

severe drought. Potable water use was 35 percent lower

supplies. DSRSD analyzed options for diversifying its

in calendar year 2015 than in 2013, surpassing the 12

water supply through potable reuse, desalination, and

percent reduction assigned by state regulators. By May

other local and regional alternatives, in response to

2016, DSRSD was able to suspend the local drought

recent and projected cutbacks in water deliveries from

emergency and move to voluntary measures, in part

the State Water Project. The high-level study identified

because customers conserved so well in 2014 and 2015.

potential yields and costs for four sets of options. Rec-

Extended recycled water pipelines to 32 more
large irrigation sites. Since 2012, DSRSD has installed

ommendations include working with regional partners
to evaluate the feasibility of these alternatives.

six miles of “purple pipes” in established areas of Dublin,

Collaborated with Tri-Valley partners to study the

built before recycled water was available. Now most

feasibility of potable reuse. After working together

parks, schools, street medians, homeowner association

successfully to reduce water use by 25 percent during

common areas, and commercial and multi-family proper-

the drought emergency, the Tri-Valley’s water agencies

ties in these neighborhoods are irrigated with recycled

and cities continued collaborating through a Water

water, saving nearly 240 million gallons of drinking water

Policy Roundtable of elected representatives. After

every year, enough to supply about 2,600 single-family

identifying the region’s major water policy issues, the

homes.

group decided to investigate the feasibility of potable

Focused on Increasing Water
Supply Reliability

reuse as an alternative water supply. A public issues survey conducted as part of the effort found that a majority
of Tri-Valley voters would support supplementing local
drinking water supplies with advanced purified water.

Completed the 2015 Urban Water Management
Plan. This foundational planning document outlines how
DSRSD plans to provide adequate and reliable water
supplies for existing and future customers under normal

4
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Dublin’s Heritage Park (top left), Mape Park (top right), and Pioneer Cemetery (bottom), were converted to recycled water
irrigation after DSRSD extended its distribution system west of Interstate 680.
Dublin San Ramon Services District CAFR FYE 2016
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ACHIEVEMENTS

Strengthened Our Financial
Position

Completed a comprehensive update of the Water
System Master Plan. This plan identifies improvements

model by rating the current condition of each asset at the
treatment plant. The model and database are foundational
elements of a data-driven asset management program, on
schedule for full implementation by 2020.

in the District’s potable and recycled water systems

Reduced pension liability to reduce future op-

needed to serve new development and maintain reliable

erating costs. DSRSD recognizes the significance of

service to existing customers through 2035. By pro-

the unfunded pension liability with the Public Employees

jecting the cost and timing of essential projects, master

Retirement System (PERS). The Board authorized a $5

plans provide a critical foundation for long-term financial

million payment on the outstanding liability in FYE 2015

planning.

and FYE 2016 and another payment budgeted in FYE 2017,

Integrated master planning with fee setting for
new development; established initial funding for
an alternative water supply. DSRSD conducted a
study of capacity reserve fees in concert with updating
its Water System Master Plan and identifying options for
diversifying its water supply. Integrating these processes

with the intent of fully funding the liability within three
to five years. Eliminating this debt will save DSRSD $0.9
million annually in operating expense.

Improved Services to Customers

Added new online account services. In addition to

ensures fees are current, sustainable, and sufficient to

tracking their water use, customers can now use the

fund new development’s share of the needs identified in

AquaHawk customer portal to view their current balance,

the plan, which include a potential potable reuse project.

access two years of statements for viewing and printing,

Capacity reserve fees will generate $10 million toward

export account data, and sign up for paperless billing.

this effort over the next decade.

In addition, DSRSD’s third-party payment processor

Developed data and tools to systematically plan
infrastructure replacement. DSRSD completed the

integrated its service with AquaHawk so customer data
populates automatically.

next generation of a financial model that will be used to

Reduced need for service calls. When a customer

estimate the cost and timing for replacing wastewater

moves in or out, DSRSD no longer has to schedule a ser-

treatment infrastructure as it wears out, everything

vice call to turn the water meter on or off. Thanks to up-

from multi-million-dollar clarifiers and digesters to small

graded software, in-house staff now start or stop service

pumps. The model draws upon a newly reorganized and

using data transmitted automatically from the meter. The

standardized database that defines the age of each asset,

new process provides faster response time to customers

its useful life according to industry standards, and the

and saves the equivalent of a full-time staff position.

expected cost to replace or rehabilitate it. Over the
next several years, DSRSD will refine the accuracy of the
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ACHIEVEMENTS

Operated Efficiently

Transitioned smoothly to a new general manager.
When DSRSD’s long-time general manager retired, the
board efficiently managed the search and selection of a new
chief executive in less than six months. Senior and mid-level
managers took on extra responsibilities during the transition, maintaining all essential programs without the need for
additional staff.
Purchased a new facility for field operations. DSRSD
secured a permanent home for its Field Operations Division,
which had to vacate leased space that is being redeveloped.
The 27,000-square-foot building (pictured above) on two
acres provides warehouse, office, and exterior storage spaces well suited to immediate and future needs. DSRSD was
able to buy a smaller parcel than planned because an adjacent
District property has ample space to store materials and
equipment.
Met accelerating demands for recycled water during
facility expansion. District staff expedited the installation
of an additional sand filter to boost recycled water production in time to supply the City of Pleasanton’s new recycled
water program before summer irrigation season. Staff also
kept the wastewater treatment and water recycling plants
running at peak efficiency, despite having to operate the
new filter without automatic controls during construction.

(Top) A construction worker installs components of new sand
filter, which was needed to boost recycled water production.
(Bottom) Customer Services Represenative Christina Casha
processes a stack of checks and payment coupons using an
efficient new automated system.

As a result, all customers received the recycled water they
needed, without interruption.
Automated check processing. Customer Services

and eliminating errors, and reports returned items in 24 to 48

completed the integration of a new remittance system that

hours instead of weeks. Although increased staff productivity

scans, records, and deposits check payments electronically

generates the biggest return, the new process reduces bank

in less than 10 percent of the time of the previous process.

fees by about $200 per month, which will recoup the $7,000

The bank receives deposits instantly, improving cash flow

cost of the system in less than three years.

Dublin San Ramon Services District CAFR FYE 2016
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DSRSD hosted two “Defeat the Drought”
events with Congressman Eric Swalwell.
Leaders of 11 Bay Area water agencies
exchanged ideas on improving water supply
reliabiity at a town hall meeting, which
included a tour of the water recycling plant.
The next day, more than 300 people came
to a public expo of conservation information,
held at one of the District’s residential
recycled water fill stations.

Dublin Vice Mayor Abe Gupta (left) and former DSRSD General Manager
Bert Michalczyk (above), speak to residents, elected officials, and other local leaders as bulldozers dig trenches for new recycled water pipelines in western Dublin.

88
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Community Outreach
Influenced the Public to Maintain
Wise Water Use

• Recycled water celebration. Dublin residents, elected
officials, and recycled water partners and supporters gathered to salute the extension of recycled water pipes west

Encouraged customers to continue conserving. After res-

of Interstate 680 in DSRSD’s service area, where parks and

idents and commercial irrigators saved more water than required

school grounds had been parched brown by the drought.

in 2015, in 2016 DSRSD’s drought outreach shifted to thanking
customers and public officials, and encouraging them to stay the

• Bill messages and online resources. Customers

course. Tactics included:

learned of changes to mandatory water-use limitations

• “Power Shower Hour.” on local radio. All summer, morning

extensive information on the District website, which also

DJs on Tri-Valley station KKIQ encouraged listeners to shower
no longer than the five-minute songs they played over the
airwaves. The promotion included paid advertising.
• Save Our Water’s “Splash Brothers” campaign. DSRSD

and water shortage rates through on-bill messages and
featured the statewide campaign, “Save Our Trees.”
• Fix a Leak Campaign. Coordinating with the EPA’s Fix
a Leak Week in March, DSRSD promoted how-to videos
through a bill insert, its website, and Twitter, and distrib-

shared in the cost of airing a public service announcement, fea-

uted 900 children’s bookmarks through a Barnes & Noble

turing Golden State Warriors’ basketball stars Stephen Curry

bookstore and local libraries. A public service announce-

and Klay Thompson, through basketball season on Comcast

ment aired 14 times in March on a local radio station.

SportsNet and social media.

• Free yard signs. DSRSD continued distributing signs:
“The Official California Yard, I’m helping out during the
drought” for residents who allowed their lawns to go
golden and “Recycled water keeps this garden green” for
recycled water users.
• “Mobile billboards.” Magnetic signs on 15 District
vehicles continued to promote conservation messages such
as, “Grass guzzles water, rethink your landscape,” and “Fix
leaks, save money.”
• Green House Calls. For a fourth year, DSRSD distribut-

• Town Hall with Congressman Eric Swalwell. After

ed water-saving devices to customers through 256 “Green

touring DSRSD’s water recycling plant, Representative Swal-

House Calls” co-sponsored with the City of Dublin. Twen-

well hosted a meeting with leaders of 11 water agencies in his

ty-five percent of visits were to low-to-moderate income

district to exchange ideas on water supply reliability.

households, and 38 percent of households spoke a primary

• Defeat the Drought Expo. More than 300 people came to

language other than English.

meet Congressman Eric Swalwell at the Dublin recycled water
fill station, which offered special Saturday hours and new user
training every 15 minutes.

Dublin San Ramon Services District CAFR FYE 2016
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month. The messages keep 85 influential people informed
on issues affecting local water and wastewater services,
an essential step in gaining broad support for long-term
DSRSD policy priorities.
Informed more people via website. The District website is a primary means of communicating with the public.
Traffic increased seven percent during 2016 as customers
continued seeking out drought information and using the
AquaHawk Customer Portal. An eNotification service
debuted in September: anyone can subscribe to meeting
notices and District news. DSRSD also uses Twitter to
attract website traffic and maintains a Facebook page for
ACWA Deputy Director Jennifer Persike (left)
presents the association’s top outreach award to
DSRSD directors, staff, and legal counsel.
Received top award for drought outreach by a
California water agency. In December, the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) presented its Huell Howser Best in Blue Award to DSRSD for
innovative water conservation outreach. The award
honored the District’s hard-hitting campaign that
generated intense media buzz and produced immediate and long-lasting water-use reductions during the
drought emergency.

Informed the Public about the
District’s Role in the Community

Began regular outreach to community leaders.
Prominent Tri-Valley citizens began receiving short
emailed briefings, called DSRSDtoday, once or twice a

the Residential Recycled Water Fill Station.
Provided resources to answer water quality questions. As people across the county became concerned
about the drinking water crisis in Flint, Michigan, DSRSD
used its website, customer service staff, and annual water
quality report to explain the low risk of lead contamination here. DSRSD also added new website information
on hard water—a topic of local concern—which explains
how water softeners can degrade groundwater quality.
Continued popular public tours. More than 250
people toured the Regional Wastewater Treatment
Facility during FYE 2016, seeing firsthand how wastewater
treatment and water recycling protect public health and
the environment, 24/7. Wastewater operators conduct
the tours, showing visitors how the District manages
ever-changing conditions to operate the plant efficiently
and keep costs as low as possible. The District offers
quarterly public tours open to anyone and schedules
students and other groups on request.

Community leaders receive email briefs from DSRSD
to keep them informed on locally important water and
wastewater issues.
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Supported Water Education and
Career Training
Coordinated science fair awards. For the fourth

year, DSRSD coordinated regional awards for “Excellence
in Water Research” presented to middle and high school
students at two county science fairs. Twenty-one water
and wastewater agencies contribute funds for prizes and
fair sponsorship, provide scientists and engineers to select
the winners, and invite winners to a board of directors
or city council meeting for additional recognition. The
countywide fairs are affiliated with the Intel International
Science and Engineering Fair, the world’s largest pre-college science competition.
Sponsored career training. To train the next generation of water and wastewater treatment plant operators,
DSRSD partners with 21 agencies and Solano Community College in the Bay Area Consortium of Water and
Wastewater Education (BACWWE). The consortium
offers college credit classes that prepare students for certification exams and covers the cost of students’ tuition
and books. DSRSD’s laboratory supervisor and operations supervisor teach two of the courses at the District’s
treatment facility. The District promotes the program to
career counselors at local high schools and community
colleges and has hired four BACWWE graduates.
Facilitated water education in local schools.
DSRSD distributed activity booklets on water conservation and water recycling to 4,000 students (second
and fifth graders) and encouraged their teachers to use
related lesson plans tailored to their grade level.

Protected Public Health and the
Environment
Provided convenient options for disposing of

prescription drugs. To prevent pollution of waterways
and groundwater, the District partners with the Pleasanton police department in providing a permanent, 24-hour
drop box for waste medications, and with Dublin’s police
on two annual drug take-back events. Bill inserts featured
these resources. The District’s website provides links to
other locations where residents can properly dispose of
toxic wastes, including medications, mercury, batteries,
fluorescent lights, paint, and pesticides.

Dublin San Ramon Services District CAFR FYE 2016

(Top) Water industry professionals judge a student project at the
Alameda County Science and Engineering Fair. DSRSD coordinates an award for “Excellence in Water Research.”
(Middle) Community Affairs Supervisor Sue Stephenson shares
tips for wise water use with a Boy Scout troop and (bottom) a
Clorox employee at the company’s Whole Life Expo.
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Financial Planning
& Policies
District management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure that protects the assets of the District from loss, theft, or
misuse. The District uses the full accrual method for financial reporting and
employs enterprise funds to account for its activities. An enterprise fund is used
to account for governmental activities that are similar to activities performed by
a commercial enterprise. However, the purpose of an enterprise fund is not to
maximize return, as in the private sector, but to provide a product or service to
the public at a reasonable cost. Funds are used to track operations for internal
budgeting and reporting. Each department budgets its operations among the
enterprise funds. The ten-year capital improvement program and the two-year
operating budget are approved by the Board of Directors. The general manager is
authorized to approve budget transfers within a fund with certain limitations.
Recognizing the critical importance of financial planning and controls, the
District has developed comprehensive financial policies based on industry best
practices. The policies guide long-term planning and ensure that financial decisions
are analyzed and applied in a consistent manner. The Board of Directors reviews
and approves all financial policies.
All policies are available on the District’s website at www.dsrsd.com/open-gov/
district-policies. Financial policies include:
• Apportioning Planning Costs
• Auditor Selection and Services
• Budget Accountability
• Capital Financing and Debt Management
• Consolidated Water Enterprise Fund
• Financial Reserves
• Investment
• Project Cost Allocation
• Rate Policies and Guidelines
• Utility Billing Adjustments
• Water Expansion Fund Management
The District uses a long-term approach to financial planning by having a
two-year budget, ten-year capital plan, and rate studies that project revenue and
expenses for up to ten years. This long-term focus supports the Board’s strategic
objective to manage public funds to provide financial stability, rate equity, longterm rate management, and maintenance of a solid AA credit rating. Meeting these
goals ensures timely and reasonable access to credit markets when needed.

12
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Fiscal Year Ended 2016

In FYE 2016 the District reviewed and updated the Consolidated Water Enterprise

Fund policy and the Rate Policies and Guidelines policy.
In reviewing the Consolidated Water Enterprise Fund policy, the Board reaffirmed
its commitment to maintaining a consolidated water enterprise for potable and
recycled water services. Consolidating the water enterprises provides for better
financial management of the water enterprise as a whole; spreads the benefit of the
recycled water enterprise, and the increased reliability it creates for the potable
water system, to the entire community; and allows the District to set prices that both
encourage recycled water service and temper the cost of potable water service.
In reviewing Rate Policies and Guidelines, the Board recognized that current
revenue requirements includes a capacity fee “buy in” component. When the
District’s service area is fully built out, this revenue component will disappear. The
District’s goal is to plan accordingly and gradually eliminate the impact of the “buy
in” component on revenue requirements. Asset replacements should be 100 percent
funded by rate revenue by the end of the 10-year planning period (2027).
For a detailed discussion and analysis of the District’s operations, please read the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) in the Financial Section of this report.
Financial Trends, in the Statistical Section of this report, summarizes the fluctuations
in revenue sources and operating expenses the District has experienced over the past
10 years.

Developments in Dougherty Valley (below) and Dublin continue to attract new residents to the District’s service area. Population is
expected to increase by 30 percent by 2035.

Dublin San Ramon Services District CAFR FYE 2016
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Awards and Acknowledgments
The Government Finance Officers Association

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a
period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues

of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded

to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s

the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in

requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA

Financial Reporting to Dublin San Ramon Services

to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

District for its comprehensive annual financial report
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. This was
the 15th consecutive year the District has achieved
this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. The report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

The preparation of this report would not have
been possible without the hard work and dedication
of the entire staff in finance and public information.
We also want to express our appreciation to the
staff members throughout the District who assisted
and contributed to the information presented in this
report. Finally, we would like to acknowledge the
support of the DSRSD Board of Directors for its
dedication to serving customers well by maintaining
strong financial standards.

Respectfully submitted,

Daniel McIntyre

John Archer

General Manager

Administrative Services Manager,
Treasurer
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Board of Directors
as of June 30, 2016

Richard Halket

D. L. (Pat) Howard

Vice President

President
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Georgean
Vonheeder-Leopold

Madelyne (Maddi)
Misheloff

Director

Director

Edward R. (Ed) Duarte
Director
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Senior Managers
as of June 30, 2016

Daniel McIntyre
General Manager

John Archer

Dan Lopez

Administrative Services Manager
Treasurer

Interim Operations Manager
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Organizational Chart
as of June 30, 2016

RATEPAYERS OF THE DISTRICT

General Counsel

PUBLIC INFORMATION
DIVISION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

GENERAL MANAGER

Community Affairs Supervisor

MANAGEMENT
SERVICES DIVISION
Executive Services Supervisor

ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES
DEPARTMENT

OPERATIONS
DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING
DEPARTMENT

Administrative
Services Manager

Operations
Manager

Engineering Services
Manager

Plant Operations Division

Asset Management/CIP
Division

Accounting Division

Customer Services
Division

Electrical Maintenance
Division

Permitting and Planning
Division

Mechanical Maintenance
Division
Information
Services Division

Analytical Laboratory
Division

Human Resources Division
Field Operations Division
Safety and
Environmental Compliance
Division
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Financial Section

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors
of the Dublin San Ramon Services District
Dublin, California
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Dublin San Ramon Services
District, California (District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Address: 180 Grand Avenue, Suite 1500 Oakland, CA 94612 • Phone: 510.768.8251 • Fax: 510.768.8249
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the Dublin San Ramon Services District as of June 30, 2016,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 21-25, the schedule of the District’s
proportionate share of net pension liability on page 58, the schedule of contributions for the
District pension plan on page 58 and the schedule of funding progress of the District’s
postemployment healthcare benefits plan on page 58, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and
statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements.
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Badawi & Associates, CPAs
Oakland, California
November 23, 2016
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FINANCIAL SECTION

DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2016
The District’s net position increased $34.4 million or 9.1% from $377.0 million to $411.4
million
Service charge revenues increased $0.6 million or 1.4% from $44.7 million to $45.4 million
Capacity reserve fees increased $4.6 million or 15.2% from $29.9 million to $34.5 million
Operating expenses (excluding depreciation) decreased $0.8 million or 1.8% from $45.0
million to $44.1 million
In fiscal year 2015 the District had a prior year adjustment of $17.2 million which was the
result of recording net pension liability as required by GASB 68; no prior year adjustments
were recorded in 2016
Overview of the Financial Statements
The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the Dublin
San Ramon Services District’s basic financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements
consists of the Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Position, Statements of Cash Flows, and Notes to Financial Statements. The notes to the
financial statements provide narrative explanations or additional data as needed for full
disclosure.
•

•

•

The Statements of Net Position presents financial information on all of the Districts assets,
liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator
of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.
The Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position measures
the success of District operations for the year and determines cost recovery through user
fees and other charges, profitability, and credit worthiness.
The Statements of Cash Flows provides information about District cash receipts and
disbursements and net changes in cash that result from operating activities, non-capital
financing activities, capital financing activities and investing activities. Thus, the
Statements of Cash Flows shows sources and uses of cash.

The format of the District’s financial statements is in accordance with business-type activities
known as enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are self-supporting funds that charge fees to users to
cover the costs of operation, maintenance, and recurring capital replacement (OM&R), and are
similar to the accounting methods used by private sector companies. Enterprise funds report on
the accrual basis of accounting recognizing all assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses applicable
as of the financial statement date.
The District is governed by a Board of Directors, which sets policy, adopts budgets and appoints a
General Manager to direct operations. There are five Directors elected at-large to overlapping
four-year terms.

Dublin San Ramon Services District CAFR FYE 2016
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DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
Changes in Net Position
The following condensed statements, Statements of Net Position (Table 1) and Statements of
Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position (Table 2), are presented in a
comparative format together with dollar and percentage of change from the previous year, to help
the reader analyze financial activity.
TABLE 1
Condensed Statements of Net Position
(In millions of dollars)

Period ended June 30

2016

2015

$168.4
325.0
12.7
506.2

$147.3
318.1
12.8
478.2

10.5

Current and restricted liabilities
Long-tem liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflow of resources

Current and restricted assets
Capital assets
Other assets
Total assets
Deferred outflow of resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for expansion
Restricted for assessment district
Unrestricted
Total net position

2016 vs 2015
$ Change % Change
$

21.1
7.0
(0.1)
28.0

14.3%
2.2%
-0.4%
5.9%

7.0

3.5

50.9%

12.9
88.5
101.5

12.1
91.2
103.3

0.8
(2.6)
(1.9)

6.4%
-2.9%
-1.8%

3.9

4.8

(0.9)

-19.6%

255.0
68.4
1.7
86.3
$411.4

246.3
52.5
0.7
77.5
$377.0

8.7
15.9
0.9
8.8
34.4

3.5%
30.4%
134.4%
11.4%
9.1%

$

2014
$132.8
318.8
13.1
464.6

2015 vs 2014
$ Change % Change
$

-

10.9%
-0.2%
-2.2%
2.9%

7.0

12.1
88.9
101.0

(0.0)
2.3
2.3

-

234.2
48.4
0.9
80.1
$363.6

14.5
(0.7)
(0.3)
13.6

2.6%
2.3%

4.8

$

12.1
4.1
(0.2)
(2.6)
13.4

5.2%
8.5%
-20.9%
-3.2%
3.7%

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 (FYE 2016) total assets increased 5.9% or $28.0 million
from June 30, 2015 (FYE 2015), which had an increase of 2.9% or $13.6 million over June 30, 2014
(FYE 2014). The increases over the past two years has been primarily in cash and investments,
due to increase in capital reserve fees received in the past two years. For a more detailed look at
the increase in cash, see Statements of Cash Flows on page 11.
Total liabilities decreased $1.9 million or 1.8% during the FYE 2016 after an increase of $2.3 million
or 2.3% during FY2015. The decrease in FYE 2016 is primarily the reduction in long-term debt
(see Financial Statement Note #7 – Long-term Debt). In FYE 2015 increase was the result of the
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DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
District recording its net pension liability of $13.7 million as required by GASB 68, offset by the
payoff of $11.1 million in long-term debt.
Deferred inflows/outflows of resources relate to the Districts pension plan with California Public
Employees’ Retirement, see Financial Statement Note #11 – Pension Plan for additional
information.
Overall, the District’s total net position increased $34.4 million or 9.1% during FYE 2016; and $13.4
million or 3.7% during FYE2015. The increases over the past two years are principally in
investment in capital assets and expansion as the District completed several construction projects
and development by contractors continues to grow within the District service area.
TABLE 2
Condensed Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
(In millions of dollars)

Period ended June 30
Service charge revenues
Other revenues
Investment income
Capacity reserve fees
Contributions
Total revenues

2016
$ 45.4
9.1
1.6
34.5
1.5
92.0

2015
$ 44.7
8.6
1.0
29.9
5.0
89.2

2016 vs 2015
$ Change % Change
$
0.6
1.4%
0.5
5.4%
0.7
71.1%
4.6
15.2%
(3.5)
-70.7%
2.8
3.2%

2014
$ 45.8
7.7
1.4
13.1
4.7
72.7

2015 vs 2014
$ Change % Change
$ (1.0)
-2.3%
0.9
12.0%
(0.4)
-30.4%
16.8
128.4%
0.2
5.2%
16.5
22.8%

Operating expenses
(excluding depreciation)
Depreciation
Non-operating expenses
Total expenses

44.1

45.0

(0.8)

-1.8%

48.9

(3.9)

-8.0%

11.6
1.9
57.7

11.3
2.4
58.6

0.3
(0.4)
(0.9)

2.9%
-18.4%
-1.6%

10.9
2.5
62.3

0.4
(0.1)
(3.7)

3.5%
-4.4%
-5.9%

Changes in net position

34.4

30.6

3.7

12.2%

10.4

20.2

13.4
17.2
30.6
34.4

3.7%

353.2
353.2
$363.6

Beginning net position
Prior period adjustment
Beginning net position, as restated
Ending net position

377.0
377.0
$411.4

363.6
(17.2)
346.4
$377.0

$

8.8%
9.1%

10.4
(17.2)
(6.8)
$ 13.4

193.8%
3.0%
-1.9%
3.7%

In FYE 2016, the District had an increase in total revenues of $2.8 million compared to FYE 2015,
the increase was due to Capacity reserve fees received from developers of $4.6 million offset by a
decrease in contributions of sub-surface lines as developers move to the next phase of their
construction. FYE 2015 had a $16.5 million increase over FYE 2014 due to Capacity reserve fees
received from developers of $16.8 million offset by a decrease in operating revenues due to the
decrease in water sales due to the drought.
Dublin San Ramon Services District CAFR FYE 2016
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DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
Total expenses decreased $0.9 million or 1.6% during FYE 2016, the decrease was primarily in
Contract Services due to a refund from Zone 7 of state water project money related to Dougherty
Valley Assessment District. In FYE 2015 total expenses decreased $3.7 million or 5.9% primarily
due an one-time expenditure that occurred in FYE2014 for the installation of advanced metering
infrastructure, which integrated meters, communications networks and data management
systems.
In FYE 2015 the District recorded a $17.2 million Prior period adjustment as required under GASB
68 to record the net pension liability from the accounting valuation report provided by California
Public Employees’ Retirement as of the measurement date of June 30, 2015. There were no Prior
period adjustments in FYE2016.
Capital Assets and Debt
In FYE 2016 the District had the following expenditures for construction in progress:

Recycled water system expansion and improvements
Corporate yard and administrative facilities
Improvements to SCADA
Wastewater treatment plant improvements
Potable water system improvements
Network and software upgrades and improvements
Wastewater system improvements

$5,490,214
5,296,061
2,478,228
2,435,328
612,117
255,319
173,112
$16,740,379

During FYE 2016, the District purchased, had contributed, or transferred from construction in
progress the following assets:

Recyled water system expansion - West Dublin
Contributed sub-surface lines
Wastewater treatment plant - secondary clarifier
Vehicles and equipment
Wastewater treatment plant - various improvements
Computer software and equipment
Water main improvement

$6,973,846
1,460,660
1,458,430
111,466
71,320
62,000
31,367
$10,169,089

The District had several large projects under construction during FYE2016, the largest being the
expansion of the recycled water system to the west side of Dublin, which was completed in
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DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
FYE2016. The District also purchased a building and property in Pleasanton, CA for a corporate
yard and stated renovations. Other projects include improvements to the Supervisory Control and
Data Acquisition (SCADA) which monitors instrumentation, pumps and valves at the Districts
water and recycled water facilities which total $2.5million, improvements to the wastewater
treatment plant (WWTP) secondary clarifier, which was completed. Several projects to improve
potable water infrastructure which total $0.5million, and network/software improvements for an
electronic content management system which total $0.4million.
In FYE 2016, the District completed several projects at the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP)
the largest being the $7 million improvement of standby and emergency power which included
coordinating with PG&E to bury existing 21kv transmission lines. Other projects at the WWTP
included rehabilitating of the Dissolved Air Flotation Thickener (DAFT), rehabilitating a
secondary clarifier, and several small projects, all under $50,000 which totaled $0.4 million. The
District also replaced several vehicles including two sewer cleaning combination trucks. For
additional information on capital assets see Financial Statement Note 4 – Capital Assets.
During FYE 2016, there were no additions to debt. Below is a recap of the Districts current
outstanding debt payable. For additional information on the District’s debt obligations, see
Financial Statement Note 7 – Long-term debt.

Debt Payable
LAVWMA Obligation
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds

Balance at
6/30/2015
$36,700,412
35,090,000
$71,790,412

Additions

$ -0-

Principal
Payments

Balance at
6/30/2016

$1,423,596
280,000
$1,703,596

$35,276,816
34,810,000
$70,086,816

Rates and Other Economic Factors
The District is not subject to variations in general economic conditions, such as increases or
declines in property tax values or sales taxes. Accordingly, the District sets its rates to cover the
costs of operations, maintenance, replacement (OM&R), and debt-financed capital
improvements.
Contacting the District
This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report, or need any additional financial information, contact
the Financial Services Department at 7051 Dublin Blvd., Dublin, California 94568; 925-828-0515

Dublin San Ramon Services District CAFR FYE 2016
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DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016
WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS AS OF JUNE 30, 2015
2016
Water

Sewer
ASSETS
Current assets:
Pooled cash
Pooled investments
Restricted investments
Accounts receivable
Receivable from Water Fund
Interest receivable
Employee notes receivable
Capacity reserve fees receivable
Prepaid expenses

2,007,070
98,604,697

$

1,113,878
54,542,148

$

2015

4,595,581

7,062,549

11,658,130

218,781
2,521
161,156
3,625

119,767

2,185

338,548
2,521
161,156
5,810

5,586,128
128,937,192
45,393
12,037,197
217,785
221,959
4,450
287,209
2,820

105,593,431

62,840,527

168,433,958

147,340,133

249,128,646
88,832,096

190,022,626
51,309,643

439,151,272
140,141,739

429,340,414
128,885,714

Net property, plant and equipment
Land and construction in progress

160,296,550
7,137,466

138,712,983
18,900,691

299,009,533
26,038,157

300,454,700
17,630,870

Total capital assets

167,434,016

157,613,674

325,047,690

318,085,570

8,425,744
410,707

3,883,495

12,309,239
410,707

12,195,375
575,786

8,836,451

3,883,495

12,719,946

12,771,161

Total non-current assets

176,270,467

161,497,169

337,767,636

330,856,731

Total assets

281,863,898

224,337,696

506,201,594

478,196,864

2,111,338
4,291,040
6,402,378

1,267,311
2,829,211
4,096,522

3,378,649
7,120,251
10,498,900

240,873
6,716,224
6,957,097

Total current assets

$

Totals

3,120,948
153,146,845

$

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Other assets:
Net OPEB asset
Capacity reserve fees receivable - long term
Total other assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows pension related amounts
Deferred employer pension contributions
Total deferred outflows of resources
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WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS AS OF JUNE 30, 2015
2016
Sewer
Water
DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE
30, 2016
749,758
5,986,283
WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS
30, 2015
563,523 AS OF JUNE
510,144
762,586
765,094
443,620
2016
803,029
Sewer
Water

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contractor bonds and deposits
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensated absences
Interest payable
Payable to Sewer Fund
LIABILITIES
Current portion of long-term debt
Current liabilities:
Unearned revenue and other liabilities
Accounts payable
Contractor
and
deposits
Totalbonds
current
liabilities
Accrued expenses
Accrued
compensated absences
Long
term liabilities:
Interest
payable
Long-term
debt
Payable
to Sewer
Fund
less current
portion
Current
portion
of long-term debt
Net pension
liability
Unearned
revenuereserve
and other liabilities
DLD remediation
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities
Total long term liabilities
Long term liabilities:
Total liabilities
Long-term debt
less current portion
Deferred inflows of resources
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources - Pension
DLD remediation reserve
Total deferred inflows of resources
Unearned revenue

5,505,433
8,033,076
44,495,600

1,787,500
553,052
6,736,041
1,073,667
12,924,589
762,586
1,208,714
803,029
68,299,316
1,787,500
12,698,750
553,052
1,613,600
5,916,140
12,924,589
88,527,806

48,923,719

52,528,676

101,452,395

103,319,601

33,779,316
8,228,583
2,467,551
1,613,600
2,467,551
410,707

34,520,000
4,470,167
1,389,113
1,389,113
5,505,433

68,299,316
12,698,750
3,856,664
1,613,600
3,856,664
5,916,140

70,086,815
13,720,257
4,798,946
706,000
4,798,946
6,662,233

5,986,283
510,144
8,033,076
443,620
803,029
34,520,000
290,000
4,470,167

44,032,206

44,495,600

88,527,806

91,175,305

132,157,200
48,923,719

122,803,674
52,528,676

254,960,874
101,452,395

246,295,158
103,319,601

54,945,167

13,499,225
1,655,331
1,389,113
36,558,199
1,389,113

68,444,392
1,655,331
3,856,664
86,330,838
3,856,664

52,503,676
706,268
4,798,946
77,530,312
4,798,946

2,467,551
49,772,639
2,467,551
$

Total net position

$

6,736,041
1,073,667
762,586
1,208,714
803,029
Totals

290,000

33,779,316
1,497,500
8,228,583
553,052
1,613,600
410,707
4,891,513
44,032,206

Total net position
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Expansion
Assessment district
Unrestricted

2015

6,014,480
1,022,051
488,364
1,206,209
807,695
2015
217,785
1,703,597
684,115
6,014,480
1,022,051
12,144,296
488,364
1,206,209
807,695
217,785
70,086,815
1,703,597
13,720,257
684,115
706,000
6,662,233
12,144,296
91,175,305

1,497,500
553,052
749,758
563,523
4,891,513
762,586
765,094

Total long term liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Total liabilities
Restricted for:
Expansion
Deferred inflows of resources
Assessment district
Deferred inflows of resources - Pension
Unrestricted
Total deferred inflows of resources

Totals

236,875,006

$

174,516,429

$

411,391,435

$

377,035,414

132,157,200

122,803,674

254,960,874

246,295,158

54,945,167

13,499,225
1,655,331
36,558,199

68,444,392
1,655,331
86,330,838

52,503,676
706,268
77,530,312

49,772,639
236,875,006

$

174,516,429

$

411,391,435

$

377,035,414

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
2016
Water

Sewer

Total

2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Wastewater service charges
Water sales
Other revenues

$

22,092,217
2,711,974

23,280,944
6,345,615

$

22,092,217
23,280,944
9,057,589

24,804,191

29,626,559

54,430,750

53,376,630

10,611,266
2,432,220
9,227,374
192,333
7,145,989

6,282,813
9,972,084
5,135,751
295,145
4,461,474

16,894,079
12,404,304
14,363,125
487,478
11,607,463

16,979,107
11,017,394
16,312,939
650,624
11,280,429

Total operating expenses

29,609,182

26,147,267

55,756,449

56,240,493

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

(4,804,991)

3,479,292

(1,325,699)

(2,863,863)

1,043,658
45,057

595,762
2,849
(1,928,719)

1,639,420
47,906
(1,928,719)

(2,362,515)

1,088,715

(1,330,108)

(241,393)

(1,404,473)

(3,716,276)

2,149,184

(1,567,092)

(4,268,336)

575,190
20,874,351

885,470
13,588,102
179,936

1,460,660
34,462,453
179,936
(179,936)

4,983,455
29,905,253
2,496,890
(2,496,890)

17,553,329

16,802,692

34,356,021

30,620,372

219,321,677

157,713,737

377,035,414

219,321,677

157,713,737

377,035,414

363,602,261
(17,187,219)
346,415,042

$

Total operating revenues

$

21,547,608
23,186,190
8,642,832

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel
Materials
Contractual services
Other
Depreciation

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSE)
Investment income
Gain(Loss) on sale of assets
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues (expense), net
(LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
Non-cash contributions
Capital contributions - capacity reserve fees
Interfund Transfers in
Interfund Transfers (out)

(179,936)

Changes in net position
TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR
Prior year adjustment
TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR AS RESTATED
TOTAL NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

$

236,875,006

$

174,516,429

$

411,391,435

958,042

$

377,035,414

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers, users and joint powers authorities
Payments for services and supplies
Payments to or on behalf of employees

Sewer

2016
Water

Total

2015

$ 27,916,367
(10,970,524)
(13,977,219)

$ 26,890,460
(14,329,384)
(8,531,882)

$ 54,806,827
(25,299,908)
(22,509,101)

$ 50,191,527
(25,945,450)
(22,700,744)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

2,968,624

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund transfers
Due to other funds
Due from other funds

(179,936)

(213,515)
213,515

(3,792,487)
20,869,341

(280,000)
(1,933,385)
(13,268,530)
13,007,088

(1,703,596)
(1,933,385)
(17,061,017)
33,876,429

(12,761,120)
(2,529,595)
(5,617,609)
29,804,528

15,653,258

(2,474,827)

13,178,431

8,896,204

717,422
(61,560,800)
40,959,447
(137,896)

430,947
(34,060,200)
31,040,553
45,393
(76,295)

1,148,369
(95,621,000)
72,000,000
45,393
(214,191)

903,719
(37,008,452)
32,352,083
(45,393)
(17,577,033)

(20,021,827)

(2,619,602)

(22,641,429)

(21,375,076)

(1,362,096)

(1,103,084)

(2,465,180)

(10,933,539)

3,369,166

2,216,962

5,586,128

16,519,667

$ 2,007,070

$ 1,113,878

$ 3,120,948

$ 5,586,128

$ 3,479,292

$ (1,325,699)

$ (2,863,863)

(514,271)
(354,299)

11,607,463
379,067
1,929
(2,990)
(113,864)
(404,027)
(3,137,776)
721,561
51,616
274,222
2,505
907,600
(1,021,507)
(942,282)

11,280,429
(3,197,857)
1,842
12,754
(60,923)
(5,156,640)
(240,873)
1,915,280
196,489
(92,265)
(37,439)
16,000
(5,026,547)
4,798,946

7,773,615

549,902

8,323,517

4,409,196

$ 2,968,624

$ 4,029,194

$ 6,997,818

$ 1,545,333

$

$

$

$

37,849

(37,849)

(1,423,596)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

1,545,333

(217,785)
217,785

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Capacity reserve fees collected

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

6,997,818

179,936
(217,785)

217,785

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchase of investment securities
Redemptions of investment securities
Proceeds (purchase) of other investments
Proceeds of LAIF investments

4,029,194

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
$
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in employees notes receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in net OPEB asset
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflow of resources - employer contributio
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflow of resources - pension related amou
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in contractor bonds and deposits payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in DLD remediation reserve
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflow of resources - pension related amoun
Total adjustments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NON CASH TRANSACTIONS:
Fair market value adjustment increase
Contributed assets
Uncollected capacity reserve fee

(4,804,991)
7,145,989
3,114,023
1,929
(1,847)
(71,638)
(230,300)
(1,957,973)
(345,873)
45,454
274,222
(12,752)
907,600
(507,236)
(587,983)

241,079
575,190
5,010

4,461,474
(2,734,956)
(1,143)
(42,226)
(173,727)
(1,179,803)
1,067,434
6,162
15,257

133,383
885,470
581,014

374,462
1,460,660
586,024

93,643
4,983,455
100,725

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Dublin San Ramon Services District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. General
Dublin San Ramon Services District (the District) is organized under the Community Services District
Act provisions of the general laws of the State of California and is governed by a five-member Board of
Directors. The District, which was established in 1953 and became active in 1960, provides water,
recycled water and wastewater collection and treatment services. The District’s jurisdiction is
approximately 26 square miles in the counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California.
B. Basis of Accounting
The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for financial
statement purposes. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that costs
and expenses, including depreciation, and providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis, be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
Major funds are funds whose revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, or liabilities (excluding
extraordinary items) are at least 10 percent of corresponding totals for all enterprise funds and at least 5
percent of the aggregate amount for all enterprise funds.
The District reports the following major Proprietary Funds:
Water Enterprise . This enterprise accounts for the operation, maintenance and capital
improvement projects of the water system, which is funded by user charges and other fees.
Sewer Enterprise . This enterprise accounts for the operation, maintenance and capital
improvement projects of the sewer system, which are funded by user charges and other fees.
C. Measurement Focus
Enterprise funds are accounted for on a cost of services or economic resources measurement focus,
which means that all assets and all liabilities associated with their activity are included on their
balance sheets. Enterprise fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position.
D. Reporting Entity
In evaluating how to define the government for financial purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity
was made by applying the criteria prescribed by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). As
required by GAAP, these financial statements present the primary government and its component
units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Financial
accountability is interpreted to mean appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board
and either the ability to impose will by the primary government or the possibility that there is a financial
benefit or burden on the primary government.
In evaluating the financial reporting entity for purpose of preparing the basic financial statements, the
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Dublin San Ramon Services District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
D. Reporting Entity, Continued
District has determined it is financially accountable for the Dublin San Ramon Services District
Financing Corporation (Corporation). The Corporation is a separate government entity whose purpose
is to assist with the financing of certain public capital facilities for the District through the issuance of
bonds or other forms of debt. The Corporation is controlled by the District and has the same governing
body as the District, which also performs all accounting and administrative functions for the Corporation.
The Corporation is included as a blended component unit in these basic financial statements.
E. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment are recorded at historical costs or
estimated historical cost, if actual cost is not available. Contributed assets are recorded at estimated fair
value on the date of contribution.
The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of $10,000 or more and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year.
Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of related
asset classifications. The District has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital assets:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Sub-surface lines
Intangibles - Reclaimed Water Rights
Intangibles . Sewer Capacity Rights

15-25 years
10-50 years
5-25 years
25-50 years
41 years
20 years

F. Cash Flows Defined
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows the District defines cash and cash equivalents to include all
cash in deposit accounts and cash on hand but does not include cash held in escrow for restricted purposes.
G. Accounts Receivable
The District bills its water consumption and sewer usage on a cycle billing method. Cycle billing results in
an amount of services rendered but not yet billed at year-end. The District has recorded this revenue by
estimating the unbilled amount. The estimate was calculated by using the billing subsequent to the
balance sheet date (June 30) and the amount of service provided prior to June 30. This calculated
amount is included in accounts receivable.
H. Accrued Compensated Absences
The liability for vested vacation pay is calculated and accrued on an annual basis. The amount is
computed using current employee accumulated leave hours (excluding sick leave which does not
vest) at current pay rates. Full-time employees accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per month
credited in hour increments per pay period.
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Dublin San Ramon Services District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
I. Estimates
The District’s management has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the
reporting of assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). Actual results could differ from those estimates.
J. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources expense until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of net
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time.
K. Prior Year Summarized Information
The financial statements for the prior year are included for comparative purposes only.
L. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
M. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB)
The District has implemented the requirements of the following GASB Pronouncement:
 GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application– This Statement addresses
accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The definition of fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. This Statement provides
guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This
Statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures
related to all fair value measurements. There was no impact on beginning net position as part of
implementation of this accounting standard.
 GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are
Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements
67 and 68- The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information
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Dublin San Ramon Services District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
M. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB)
about pensions included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local
governments for making decisions and assessing accountability. This Statement results from a
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial
reporting for all postemployment benefits with regard to providing decision-useful information,
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional
transparency. There was no impact on beginning net position as part of implementation of this
accounting standard.
 GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local
Governments. The objective of this Statement is to identify—in the context of the current
governmental financial reporting environment—the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles used to
prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and
the framework for selecting those principles. This Statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two
categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative
literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified
within a source of authoritative GAAP. There was no impact on beginning net position as part of
implementation of this accounting standard.
 GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants - This Statement
addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain external investment pools and pool
participants. Specifically, it establishes criteria for an external investment pool to qualify for making
the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. An
external investment pool qualifies for that reporting if it meets all of the applicable criteria
established in this Statement. The specific criteria address (1) how the external investment pool
transacts with participants; (2) requirements for portfolio maturity, quality, diversification, and
liquidity; and (3) calculation and requirements of a shadow price. Significant noncompliance
prevents the external investment pool from measuring all of its investments at amortized cost for
financial reporting purposes. Professional judgment is required to determine if instances of
noncompliance with the criteria established by this Statement during the reporting period,
individually or in the aggregate, were significant. There was no impact on beginning net position
from implementation of this accounting standard.
 GASBS 82 — Pension Issues an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73 - The
objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to
Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1)
the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the
selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial
Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made
by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements.
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Dublin San Ramon Services District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016
2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
A. Policies
California Law generally requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government
securities with a market value of 110% of the District’s cash on deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes
with a market value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this
collateral is held in a separate investment pool by another institution in the District’s name and places
the District ahead of general creditors of the institution. As of June 30, 2016, the District’s cash in bank
was insured or collateralized as discussed above.
The District invests in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual investments are
evidenced by specific identifiable securities instruments, or by an electronic entry registering the owner
in the records of the institution issuing the security, called the book entry system. In order to increase
security, the District employs the Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of certain District
managed investments, regardless of their form.
The District’s investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting
principles. The District adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each
fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year.
B. Classification
Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based on whether or not
their use is restricted under the terms of District debt instruments or Agency agreements.
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investments
Total cash and investments

3,120,948
153,146,845

$

156,267,793

C. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy
The District’s Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the District to invest in
the following investment types provided the credit ratings of the issuers are acceptable to the
District; and approved percentages and maturities are not exceeded.
The table below identifies those investments authorized by the Board of Directors in the District's
investment policy, which was last adopted August 19, 2014. Maturities on investments are limited to
five years except that up to 10% of the portfolio is deemed the "long-term" portfolio and may be
invested up to seven years.
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Dublin San Ramon Services District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
C. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

Limit

Minimum
Rating

Maximum
Maturity

None

None

5 years

Bonds issues by the District

None

None

5 years

U.S. Treasury Bnotes, bills, or certificates of indebtedness
Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of this state

Authorized Investment

None

None

5 years

None

None

5 years

Registered treasury notes or bonds of the other 49 United States

None

None

5 years

Bonds, notes, warrants, or evidences of indebtedness of a local

30%

None

5 years

30%

A

5 years

Medium-term notes, definied as all corporate and depository institution debt securities

None

None

5 years

Deposits with bank and savings and loan associations, including

agency within this state
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit by nationally or state chartered
bank or a savings association or federal association or a state or
federal credit union or by a state licenses branch of a foreign bank

certficates of deposits, where deposits are insured by FDIC
Maximum
allowed by LAIF

None

N/A

The State of California Local Agency Investment Fund

None

None

N/A

Shares in California Asset Management Program (CAMP)

D. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its
fair value is to changes in market interest rates. The District generally manages its interest rate risk by
holding investments to maturity.
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including investments
held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows
the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity or earliest call date:
Investment Type

12 Months or Less

13-24 Months

25-60 Months

Total

Securities of U.S. Government
Callable
Non-Callable
State of California Securities
California Assest Management Program
Medium Term Notes
Not Rated
California Local Agency Investment Fund
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Total Unrestricted Investments
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$

$

5,502,581
5,392,242
8,548,532
8,039,731
49,283,708
1,752,538
78,519,332

$

$

8,001,004
12,710,063
754,177
21,465,243

$

$

40,036,710
7,347,956
5,008,519
769,086
53,162,270

$

$

53,540,295
5,392,242
7,347,956
8,548,532
25,758,312
49,283,708
3,275,800
153,146,845
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Dublin San Ramon Services District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated
by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The District reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF,
which is the same as the value of the pool share. The balance available for withdrawal is based on
the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in
LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other
asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal
agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations.
At June 30, 2016, these investments matured in an average of 167 days.
The District is a voluntary participant in the California Asset Management Program (CAMP). CAMP
is an investment pool offered by the California Asset Management Trust (the Trust). The Trust is a
joint powers authority and public agency created by the Declaration of Trust and established under
the provisions of the California Joint Exercise of Powers Act (California Government Code Sections
6500 et seq., or the “Act”) for the purpose of exercising the common power of its Participants to invest
certain proceeds of debt issues and surplus funds. The Pool’s investments are limited to
investments permitted by subdivisions (a) to (n), inclusive, of Section 53601 of the California
Government Code. The District reports its investments in CAMP at amortized cost. At June 30, 2016,
these investments have an average maturity of 45 days.
E. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2016 for each
investment type as provided by Standard and Poor’s.
Investment Type

AAA

AA+

AA

AA-

A+

A

Total

Securities of U.S. Government
Callable
Non-Callable
State of California Securities

$

Medium Term Notes
Not Rated
California Assest Management Program
California Local Agency Investment Fund
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Total Unrestricted Investments

$

4,010,350

$ 53,540,295
5,392,242
-

4,010,350

$ 58,932,537
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$

$

5,205,616
10,498,599
15,704,215

$

$

-

$

6,052,371

2,142,340
-

6,052,371

2,142,340

$

$

$

-

$

5,196,992

53,540,295
5,392,242
7,347,956
25,758,312

5,196,992

8,548,532
49,283,708
3,275,800
153,146,845

$
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
F. Concentration Risk
Significant District investments in the securities of any individual issuers, other than U.S. Treasury
securities, LAIF, and mutual funds, are set forth below:
Report Unit

Issuer

Investment Type

Reported Amounts

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Agency Securities
Federal Agency Securities

Federal National Mortgage Association

Federal Agency Securities

Federal Farm Credit Bank

Federal Agency Securities

9,386,309

UNIV of California CA Revenues TXBL-NTS-SER AH

State of CA Securities

5,205,616

Districe-Wide
$

25,514,079
14,016,144
10,015,520

G. Investment Valuation
Investments (except for money market accounts, time deposits, and commercial paper) are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements, are those that Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net position at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs
used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs. Investment fair value measurements at June 30, 2016 are described on the following page.
H. Investment Valuation, Continued
Fair Value Measurement Using
Investment Type

Fair Value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Secuirities of U.S. Government
Treasury and Agencies:
Federal
Federal
Federal
Federal
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Farm Credit Bank Bonds (FFCB)
Home Loan Banks (FHLB)
Home loan Mortg Corp Notes (FHLMC)
National Mort Assoc Notes (FNMA)

$

9,385,075
14,017,863
25,514,079
10,015,520

State of California Secuirities
Medium term notes
Local Agency Invesment Fund
Negotiable Certificate Of Deposit
Total investments subject to fair value

7,347,956
25,758,312
49,283,708
3,275,800
$ 144,598,313

Investments not subject to fair value measurement:
California Asset Management Program
Total Investments

8,548,532
$ 153,146,845

$

$

-

$

-

9,385,075
14,017,863
25,514,079
10,015,520

7,347,956
25,758,312
49,283,708
3,275,800
$ 144,598,313

$

$

-

-
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED
Treasury securities categorized as Level 1 are valued based on prices quoted in active markets for those
securities. Federal Agency Securities and Corporate Notes categorized as Level 2 are valued based on
matrix pricing which use observable market inputs such as yield curves and market indices that are
derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation to other means.
The District’s fair value for its investment in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
is based on the fair market value factors provided by LAIF that are calculated based on the total fair
market value of the pool. LAIF includes investments categorized as Level 1 such as United States
Treasury securities, Federal Agency securities, and supranational debentures that are valued based on
prices quoted in active markets and investments categorized as Level 2 such as negotiable certificates of
deposit and bank notes that are based on market corroborated pricing utilizing inputs such as yield
curves and indices that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation to other means. The District categorized its investments in LAIF based on the lowest
significant input used to determine the fair market value of the total pool.
3. RESTRICTED ASSETS AND RESTRICTED NET POSITION
The District has restricted its net position for capital expansion, asset replacement and other purposes in
the amounts set forth below:
Capital Expansion
Local Sewer Expansion
Regional Sewer Expansion
Water Expansion

June 30, 2016
6,670,439
48,274,728
13,499,225
$
68,444,392
$

Assessment District
Dougherty Valley Assessment District
Total Restriction on Net Position
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$

1,655,331
1,655,331
70,099,723

$

June 30, 2015
5,754,748
36,394,501
10,354,427
52,503,676

$

706,268
706,268
53,209,944

$

39

Dublin San Ramon Services District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016
4. CAPITAL ASSETS
Changes in capital assets accounts are summarized below:
Balance at
06/30/15
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Sub-surface lines
Intangibles
Total capital assets being depreciated:
Less accumulated depreciation:
Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Sub-surface lines
Intangibles
Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets being depreciated

$

Additions

Disposals

Balance at
06/30/16

Transfers

9,399,287

-

-

131,338,747

22,026

-

81,522,421

321,945

142,104,079
64,975,880

1,492,027
-

429,340,414

1,835,998

(358,231)

(4,756,509)
(36,664,557)
(36,419,653)
(41,240,121)
(9,804,875)

(400,485)
(2,835,113)
(2,668,136)
(3,069,589)
(2,634,140)

351,437
-

-

(5,156,994)
(39,499,670)
(38,736,352)
(44,309,710)
(12,439,015)

(128,885,714)

(11,607,463)

351,437

-

(140,141,740)

300,454,700

(9,771,465)

-

(358,231)
-

-

9,399,287
131,360,773

1,359,244

82,845,379

6,973,847
-

150,569,953
64,975,880

8,333,091

(6,794)

8,333,091

$

439,151,272

299,009,532

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

7,712,945
9,917,925

16,740,379

-

(8,333,091)

Total Capital assets not being depreci

17,630,870

16,740,379

-

(8,333,091)

26,038,158

-

$ 325,047,689

Total capital assets, net

$318,085,570

$

6,968,914

$

(6,794)

$

7,712,945
18,325,213

The District has included as intangible assets in the above table $24,000,786 for DERWA capacity rights
(see Note 7A) and $40,975,094 for LAVWMA transmission rights (see Note 7C).
The District had outstanding construction commitments on capital projects totaling $8,512,104 at June 30,
2016.
Depreciation expense for the District for June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Water Fund

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

$

$

Sewer Fund
Total depreciation expense
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4,461,474
7,145,989

$

11,607,463

4,393,223
6,887,206

$

11,280,429
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5. DEFERRED CAPACITY RESERVE FEES RECEIVABLE
In fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the District implemented a deferred payment program for regional
sewer capacity reserve fees as a means to attract new business to the area. The program was modified in
subsequent years and is now designed for commercial and affordable housing with regional sewer
capacity reserve fees owed between $25,000 and $100,000. Loans bear an interest rate of 5%. Customers
make a 20% down payment of regional sewer capacity reserve fees owed and enter into an
agreement with the District to pay the balance over a maximum of ten years. The capacity reserve fee
revenue is recognized as it is received. The portions outstanding are recorded as deferred capacity reserve
fees receivable, which amounted to $571,863 at June 30, 2016, of which $161,156 is the current portion.
6. JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES
A. LAVWMA
The District is one of three participants in the Livermore Amador Valley Water Management
Agency (LAVWMA), a joint powers authority formed in 1974, which constructed and operates an
export pumping facility through which all wastewater in the area is discharged. The other two
participants are the Cities of Livermore and Pleasanton, each also having a one-third representation in
LAVWMA’s Board of Directors, composed of two representatives from each participating agency.
The LAVWMA’s Board of Directors approves LAVWMA’s annual budget, which is prepared by
LAVWMA’s general manager. The Agency charges its members for project costs in proportion to their
rights to the Agency’s capacity.
The District contracts with the City of Pleasanton (“City”) to provide wastewater treatment. The
District establishes user charges for these wastewater services. The City then establishes those same
charges in its service area and remits the charges they collect to the District on a monthly basis. A
portion of the user charge is for the services provided by LAVWMA. LAVWMA bills the District for
both the District’s and Pleasanton’s share of these costs (which includes both operations and debt
service). Financial statements for LAVWMA may be obtained from DSRSD, 7051 Dublin Boulevard,
Dublin, California 94568.
During the year ended June 30, 2012, LAVWMA issued $105,345,000 principal amount of 2011 Sewer
Revenue Refunding Bonds on September 28, 2011. Proceeds of the issuance were used to refund and
retire the Series A Sewer Revenue Bonds and to pay costs of issuance.
Under the Amended And Restated Sewer Service Contract dated October 1, 2011, between
LAVWMA and Members, the Members pledged and created, in favor of LAVWMA and the
Trustee for the 2011 Bonds, a lien on the Net Revenues of their respective wastewater systems (the
“Sewer Systems”), to pay to LAVWMA the amounts owed in order for LAVWMA to pay debt service
on the 2011 Bonds. (See Note 7)
Effective October 16, 2013, the LAVWMA Board entered into an agreement to retain John Archer,
the Administrative Services Manager as LAVWMA’s Treasurer.
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6. JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES, Continued
A. LAVWMA, Continued
Financial information for LAVWMA summarized below is as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016:
Total liabilities

104,483,411

Total net position

33,418,427

Total operating revenue

11,405,848

Total operating expenses

(6,220,102)

Total non-operating revenue

83,073

Total non-operating expenses
Net gain

(3,997,274)
$

1,271,545

B. DERWA
The District is also a participant (along with East Bay Municipal Utility District) in the
DSRSD/EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (DERWA), a joint powers authority formed in 1995 to plan,
design, construct, own and operate various facilities which together will maximize the volume of
recycled water deliveries while recovering its costs. Each member provides two representatives to
the Board of Directors which approves the annual budget prepared by DERWA’s Treasurer. The
Authority began its operations on June 28, 1995.
DERWA constructed a water recycling system, including treatment, conveyance, pumping and
storage facilities which became operational on February 1, 2006. Operation and maintenance expenses
are allocated based on each member’s actual usage. Capital costs, including debt service, are
allocated based on each member’s proportional share of capital assets.
Financial statements may be obtained from DERWA, P.O. Box 24055 Oakland, California 94623.
DERWA’s outstanding loans totaled $13,622,862 The District’s share of the debt is 51.4% or $7,002,150.
Financial information for DERWA summarized below is as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016:
Total assets

$

Total liabilities

13,861,170

Total net position

48,388,945

Total operating revenue

4,208,978

Total operating expenses

3,633,023

Total non-operating expenses
Net gain
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62,250,115

372,399
$

203,556
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT
Original

Balance

Issue Amount

June 30, 2015

Retirements

Balance

40,975,094

36,700,412

(1,423,596)

$ 35,276,816

35,620,000

35,090,000

(280,000)

34,810,000

$ 71,790,412

$ (1,703,596)

$ 70,086,816

Amount Due

June 30, 2016 Within One Year

2011 LAVWMA Obligations
2%-5%, due 8/1/2031
2011 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds
4%-6%, due 1/1/2041
Total Long-term Debt

$

1,497,500
290,000

$

1,787,500

A. 2011 LAVWMA Obligations
The District’s contribution toward debt service due on debt issued by LAVWMA (see Note 6) is payable
from draws from a Rate Stabilization Fund (Regional Expansion Fund). At the end of each fiscal year, if
the balance in the District’s Regional Expansion Fund is in excess of two times maximum annual debt
service on the District’s contribution toward LAVWMA’s debt, then the total amount paid from that fund
towards debt service is considered a draw from reserves. Debt service not covered from the draw is
included in Rate Covenant Debt Service subject to a coverage requirement of 1.1 times debt service. This
coverage calculation is shown on the next page.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued
A. 2011 LAVWMA Obligations, Continued
Rate Stabilization Fund/Regional Expansion Fund
Maximum Annual Debt Payments payable from the Rate Stabilization Fund:
2009 Refunding Loan

$

2011 LAVWMA Bonds

4,332,552

$

4,332,552

Target Level of Rate Stabilization Fund (2X)

$

8,665,104

Working Capital at June 30, 2016

$

47,060,482

Actual Debt Paid from the Rate Stabilization Fund:
2009 Refunding Loan

$

LAVWMA 2011 Bonds

4,313,250

$

4,313,250

$

24,804,191

If the Working Capital balance exceeds the Target Level, all debt paid from the
Rate Stabilization Fund is considered a draw and is excluded from the
coverage requirement shown below.
Coverage Calculation (Total Sewer):
Sewer Operating Revenues
Sewer Non-Operating Revenues

1,043,658

Capacity Reserve Fees

20,874,351
(16,993,576)

Less Regional Expansion Capacity Reserve Fees
Total Available Revenues

29,728,624

Sewer Operating Expenses

29,609,182

Less Regional Expansion Costs for:
Debt Payments to LAVWMA

(4,313,250)

Other Operating Costs

(3,559,433)
(7,145,989)

Less Depreciation
Operations & Maintenance Costs
Net Available Revenue

14,590,510
$

15,138,114

$

1,464,277

$

1,464,277

Rate Covenant Debt Service:
LAVWMA 2011 Bonds (repair portion)
Coverage on Rate Covenant Debt Service
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued
B. 2011 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds
The District issued $35,620,000 of 2011 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds on January 6, 2011. Proceeds of
the issuance were used to fund a contribution to DERWA which it used to retire its commercial paper
obligations (Note 6), to refund and retire the Water-Reuse Finance Authority Obligation, and to pay
costs of issuance. Interest rates range from 4% to 6%. Principal payments are due annually beginning
August 1, 2013 through August 1, 2041.
The issuance is payable from a pledge of fees, charges and other amounts received from the available
Net Revenue of the water enterprise.
The pledge of future Water Fund Revenues ends upon
repayment of the $74,479,602 in remaining debt service on the bonds that is scheduled to occur in 2041.
Pursuant to the official statement, the District is required to set rates to achieve coverage of 1.2 times debt
service. The computation of the Net Revenue and coverage amount is presented below.
WATER REVENUES:
Water Sales
Other Revenues (1)
Interest Income

$23,280,944
6,345,615
595,762

Capacity Reserve Fees

13,588,102

Less Assessment District (2)

(1,564,329)

TOTAL WATER REVENUES

42,246,094

WATER OPERATION &
MAINTENANCE COSTS:
Operating Expense
Less DERWA Debt (3)
Less Depreciation
Less Assessment District (2)
TOTAL WATER OPERATION &
MAINTENANCE COSTS
NET WATER REVENUES

26,147,267
(843,820)
(4,461,474)
(615,266)
20,226,707
$22,019,387

DEBT SERVICE:
DERWA Debt
2011 Water Bonds
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

$843,820
2,213,869
$3,057,689
7.20

(1) Includes Tax Revenues
(2) Assessments levied in the Dougherty Valley Standby Assessment District can be used only to pay for
costs related to the Assessment District and are not available to pay debt service on the Bonds.
(3) The DERWA Payments are payable as Operation and Maintenance Costs prior to payment of debt
service on the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture and the Recycled Water Sales Agreement. For purposes of
the rate covenant established by the Indenture, the DERWA Payments will be excluded from Operation
and Maintenance Costs, but included as Debt Service on Parity Debt.
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C. Segment Reporting
The Regional Sewer Expansion Fund and Water Fund represent segments reported within the Sewer Fund
and Water Fund, respectively, which had debt outstanding, with the revenue pledge discussed above.
The Regional Sewer Expansion Fund's and Water Fund’s revenues, expenses, assets, and liabilities are
required to be accounted for separately. Condensed financial information for each segment is below.
Regional Sewer
Expansion
Condensed Statement of Net Position
Assets:
Current
Capital
Other non current
T otal assets

$

Deferred outflows of resources

48,512,076
28,903,096
359,315
77,774,487

Water

$

61,028,048
157,613,674
0
218,641,722

78,522

5,793,693

1,451,594
28,014,788
29,466,382

7,917,653
44,495,600
52,413,253

37,781

3,086,284

74,118
48,274,728

122,803,674
13,499,225
32,632,979
168,935,878

Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Long term liabilities
T otal liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
T otal net position $
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position
Operating revenue
$
Operating expenses
Operating loss (gain)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Interest expense
Non-cash contributions
Capital contributions - capacity reserve fees
T ransfers in
T ransfers out
Change in net position
Beginning net position; restated
Ending net position
$
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities
Noncapital financing activities
Capital financing activities
Investing activities
Net cash flows
Beginning cash and cash equivalents
Ending cash and cash equivalents
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$

$

48,348,846

$

29,960
(5,233,675)
(5,203,715)

$

492,215
0
16,993,576
0
12,282,076
36,066,770
48,348,846

(2,438,260)
(942,980)
17,634,855
(14,711,769)
(458,154)
1,346,359
888,205

$

$

$

27,473,867
(24,928,446)
2,545,421
580,459
(1,928,719)
885,470
13,588,102
9,621,905
(9,441,969)
15,850,669
153,085,209
168,935,878

240,895
(2,306,302)
2,564,812
(1,640,524)
(1,141,119)
2,140,975
999,856
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D. LAVWMA Pledge Obligation
As discussed in Note 6, the District is a member of LAVWMA and during the year ended June 30,
2012, LAVWMA issued $105,345,000 of 2011 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds (2011 LAVWMA
Bonds) on September 28, 2011. Proceeds of the issuance were used to refund and retire the Series A
Sewer Revenue Bonds and to pay costs of issuance. Principal payments are due annually beginning
August 1, 2012 through August 1, 2031.
Debt service on the 2011 LAVWMA Bonds is payable from Agency Net Revenues which are defined
as Gross Revenues less Maintenance and Operations costs and excluding in all cases depreciation,
replacement and obsolescence charges or reserves thereon, debt service, amortization of intangibles.
Member Liens for Repayment of 2011 Bonds: Under an amended and restated Amended And Restated
Sewer Service Contract dated October 1, 2011, between the Agency and Members, the Members
pledged and created, in favor of LAVWMA and the Trustee for the 2011 LAVWMA Bonds, a lien on the
Net Revenues of their respective wastewater systems (the “Sewer Systems”), to pay to LAVWMA the
amounts owed in order for LAVWMA to pay debt service on the 2011 LAVWMA Bonds. There are
three limitations with respect to this pledge of Net Revenues. First, this lien is subordinate to the
Members’ existing obligations payable from their Net Revenues, as well as obligations payable from
their Net Revenues to be issued in the future by the Members to finance or refinance improvements to
their respective Sewer System. Second, for the District and Pleasanton, “Net Revenues” are not defined
in the Sewer Service Contract to include all of the fees, rates and charges collected by the district and
Pleasanton in connection with their Sewer System; the District and Pleasanton have only pledged
regional service charges as security for their obligation to make the Payments. Third, Pleasanton,
in its capacity as the largest customer of the District’s Sewer System, is only obligated to levy
regional charges and fees established by the District and to transfer the amount collected to the
District.
As a result of the District’s pledge of its regional service charges, the District is considered to be
obligated in some manner for its portion of the 2011 LAVWMA Bonds and accordingly has recorded
its share of those bonds as the LAVWMA Pledge Obligation. Concurrently, the District has also
recorded its transmission rights provided to it under the terms of the Amended and Restated Sewer
Service Contract (See Note 4).
Pursuant to the official statement, each member agency is required to set rates to achieve coverage of
1.1 times debt service.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued
E. Repayment Schedule
Shown below are maturities for the District’s debt issues:
For the Year Ending
June 30
2017

Principal

Total

$

1,787,500
1,880,292
1,970,029
2,070,600
11,982,427
18,433,473
14,782,496
11,545,000
5,635,000

$

3,537,203
3,448,483
3,355,325
3,257,534
14,644,105
11,181,803
6,581,068
3,478,788
343,050

$

5,324,703
5,328,775
5,325,354
5,328,135
26,626,532
29,615,276
21,363,564
15,023,788
5,978,050

$

70,086,816

$

49,827,360

$

119,914,175

2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040
2041-2042
Total payments due

Interest

8. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
As of June 30, 2016 interfund transfers in (out) are as follows:
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Major Funds
Sewer Fund
Total

Water Fund
$
$

179,396
179,396

Total
$
$

179,396
179,396

9. UNEARNED REVENUE AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Unearned revenue and other liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2016 totaled $6,469,192.
As of June 30, 2016, the Sewer Fund recorded $391,896 from developers for future capacity reserve fee
credits. When utilized in the future, 100% of the cost of the current capacity reserve fee will be paid for
with the credit and the revenue will be recorded at that time.
Sewer Fund deferred revenue for the Deferred Capacity Reserve Fee Program was also recorded in the
amount of $571,863 (see Note 5). The current portion of this balance at June 30, 2016 is $161,156.
As of June 30, 2016, the Water Fund recorded $5,505,433 from developers for future capacity reserve
fee credits. When utilized in the future, 50% of the cost of the current capacity reserve fee will be paid for
with the credit and the revenue will be recorded at that time.
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10. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES
As of June 30, 2016 accrued compensated absences are as follows:
Business Type Activities
Sewer

Water

Total

Summary of Activity:
Beginning Balance

428,363

$ 1,206,209

Additions

$

777,846
855,672

$

511,917

1,367,589

Payments

(868,424)

(496,660)

(1,365,084)

Ending BalanceDue within one year

$

765,094

$

443,620

$ 1,208,714

11. PENSION PLAN
A. Plan Description
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District’s
Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan (the
Plan) administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions
under the Plan are established by State statute and District’s resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available
reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.
B. Benefits Provided
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability
benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957
Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for the plan
is applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law
Active plan members in the Miscellaneous Plan (Tier 1 for members hired before January 1, 2013 and Tier 2
for members hired on or after January 1, 2013) are required to contribute 8% and 6.25%, respectively,
of their annual covered salary. The District is required to contribute the actuarially determined
remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The contribution
requirements of the plan members are established by State statute and the employer contribution rate is
established and may be amended by CalPERS.
For Tier 1 members, on November 16, 2004, the Board of Directors approved a resolution authorizing
an amendment to the contract between CalPERS and the Dublin San Ramon Services District. Prior
to the amendment, the Retirement Plan formula was 2.0% at 55. The new formula of 2.7% at 55
formula provides local miscellaneous members 2.7% of pay at age 55 for each year of service credited
with the employer. If retirement is earlier than 55, the percentage of final compensation decreases for
each quarter of age to 2% at age 50. Former District employees’ service credit will not be affected by this
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11. PENSION PLAN, Continued
B. Benefits Provided, Continued
change and the change became effective in November 2004.
The District has agreed to cost sharing with employees to implement the new retirement formula. The
increased cost on an annual basis to implement the program is approximately 7% and is spread over the
next 10 years, which is the period over which CalPERS allows an agency to satisfy the increased liability.
The cost sharing was negotiated with all employee bargaining groups and continues the employeremployee partnership of jointly funding retirement benefits.
For Tier 2 members, the formula is 2% at age 62, based on the member’s final three years’ compensation.
The District’s contribution rate is 6.25% of compensation, which is effective until June 30, 2016.
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:
Miscellaneous
Prior to

On or after

Hire date

January 1, 2013

January 1, 2013

Benefit formula

2.7% @ 55

2% @ 62

Benefit vesting schedule

5 years service

5 years service

Benefit payments

monthly for life

monthly for life

Retirement age

50 - 55

52-62

Monthly benefits , as a % of eligible compensation

2.0% to 2.7%

1.0% to 2.5%

Required employee contribution rates

8%

6.25%

Required employer contribution rates

10.96%

6.237%

Starting in fiscal year 2016, the required employer contribution rate was separated into an Employer
Normal Cost Rate and a fixed dollar payment of the unfunded liability. For fiscal year 2016, the
required employer payment of the unfunded liability was $856,549.

C. Contributions- Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary
and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the
Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of
employees.
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the contributions recognized against net pension liability for the Plan
were as follows:
Miscellaneous
Contributions-employer
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6,716,224
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11. PENSION PLAN, Continued
D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions
As of June 30, 2016, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net
pension liability of the Plan as follows:
Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability
Miscellaneous

$

12,698,750

Total Net Pension Liability

$

12,698,750

The District’s net pension liability for t h e Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension liability of the CalPERS pooled plans. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June
30, 2015, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 rolled forward to June 30, 2015 using standard
update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District’s plan
liability and asset-related information where available, and proportional allocations of individual plan
amounts as of the valuation date where not available.
The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2014 and 2015
was as follows:
Miscellaneous
Proportion - June 30, 2014
Proportion - June 30, 2015
Change - Increase (Decrease)

0.220496%
0.185007%
-0.035489%

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $1,614,662. At June 30,
2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:
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11. PENSION PLAN, Continued
D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions, Continued
Deferred Outflows of
Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date

$

Difference between projected and actual experience

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

7,120,252
110,917

Changes of assumptions

1,049,370

Changes in employer's proportion
Differences between the employer's contributions and the
employer's proportionate share of contributions

154,847

2,160,176

3,112,884

121,053

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments

526,065
$

Total

10,498,900

$

3,856,664

$7,120,252 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June
30, 2017.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:
Measurement Period
Ended June 30:
2017
2018
2019
2020
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Deferred Outflows
(Inflows) of Resources
$
(375,631)
(379,393)
(395,430)
672,438
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11. PENSION PLAN, Continued
E. Actuarial Assumptions- The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:
Miscellaneous
Valuation Date

June 30, 2014

Measurement Date

June 30, 2015

Actuarial Cost Method

Entry-Age Normal Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate

7.65%

Inflation

2.75%

Projected Salary Increase

Varies by entry age and service

Investment Rate of Return

7.65% (1)

Mortality

Derived by CalPERS membership data for all funds

(1) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014
valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to
2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website.
F. Discount Rate- The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65% for the Plan. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the
Plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different
from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of
assets. Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond
rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent will be applied to
all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF).
The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term
and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
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11. PENSION PLAN, Continued
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Inflation Sensitive
Private Equity
Real Estate
Infrastructure and Forestland
Liquidity

New
Strategic
Allocation

Real Return
Years 1 - 10(a)

51.00%
19.00%
6.00%
10.00%
10.00%
2.00%
2.00%

Total

5.25%
0.99%
0.45%
6.83%
4.50%
4.50%
-0.55%

Real Return
Years 11+(b)
5.71%
2.43%
3.36%
6.95%
5.13%
5.09%
-1.05%

100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

G. Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount RateThe following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1percentage point higher than the current rate:
Miscellaneous
1% Decrease
Net Pension Liability

$

6.65%
24,237,739

Current Discount Rate
Net Pension Liability

$

7.65%
12,698,740

1% Increase
Net Pension Liability

$

8.65%
3,171,957

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position- Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
Payable to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2016, the District reported a payable of $0 for the outstanding amount of contributions to the
pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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12. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS
The District provides medical and dental benefits for employees, hired before July 1, 2014; that retire from
the District and their families under third-party insurance plans. Employees hired after 7/1/14 will no
longer be eligible for retiree dental benefits. While the District participates in the CalPERS medical plan, it
is required to pay the same amounts for retiree medical insurance as it does for active employees. The
Board sets the benefit amounts by resolution each year for each bargaining group and in accordance with
current employee contracts.
Prior to 2004, the District paid these benefits regardless of the employee’s length of service. Currently, all
new employees are automatically enrolled in a medical vesting program where they are eligible for
benefits based upon amounts set by CalPERS and length of service. Employees under the vesting program
are not eligible to receive any medical benefits without accumulating at least ten years of CalPERS service
with at least five of those years as a DSRSD employee.
As of June 30, 2016, 74 retirees are receiving medical benefits, 77 are receiving dental benefits, and there are
103 active participants eligible for future benefits.
Funding Policy and Actuarial Assumptions
The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a July 2015 actuarial valuation using
the entry age normal actuarial cost method. This is a projected benefit cost method, which takes into
account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those already accrued. The
actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.28% investment rate of return, (b) 3.25% projected annual salary
increase, (c) 2.75% inflation rate, and (d) 4.5% - 5.50% health inflation increases. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and
actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to revision at least
biannually as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
District’s OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected
payrolls using a 30 year closed amortization period.
In accordance with the District’s budget, the annual required contribution (ARC) is to be funded
throughout the year as a percentage of payroll. The District Board passed a resolution to participate in the
California Employers Retirees Benefit Trust (CERBT), an irrevocable trust established to fund OPEB.
CERBT is administered by CalPERS, and is managed by an appointed board not under the control of the
District Board. This Trust is not considered a component unit by the District and has been excluded from
these financial statements. Separately issued financial statements for CERBT may be obtained from
CalPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709.
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12. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS, Continued
Funding Progress and Funded Status
Generally accepted accounting principles permit contributions to be treated as OPEB assets and
deducted from the Actuarial Accrued Liability when such contributions are placed in an irrevocable
trust or equivalent arrangement. As a result, the District has recorded the Net OPEB Asset,
representing the difference between the ARC, the amortization of the Net OPEB Asset and actual
contributions, as presented below:
Net OPEB asset as of June 30, 2015
Annual required contribution (ARC)
Interest on net OPEB asset
Adjustment to Annual required contribution
Annual OPEB cost

$ (12,195,375)
935,579
(887,860)
882,214
929,933

Estimated payments on behalf of retirees
Estimated current year's implicit subsidy
Estimated contribution to OPEB trust

767,439
276,358
-

Total Contributions

1,043,797

Change in net OPEB Asset

(113,864)

Net OPEBAsset as of June 30, 2016

(12,309,239)

The Plan’s annual OPEB cost and actual contributions for the prior three fiscal years are set forth below:
Fiscal Year Ended

Annual OPEBCost

6/30/2014

$

Actual Contribution

636,890

$

719,186

Percentage of Annual
OPEB Cost
Contributed
113%

Net OPEB Asset
$

12,134,452

6/30/2015

681,135

742,058

109%

12,195,375

6/30/2016

929,933

1,043,797

112%

12,309,239

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits. Trend data from the actuarial studies is presented below:
Actuarial
Valuation Date
7/1/2011

Entry Age
Actuarial
Liability

Actuarial Asset
$

13,422,427

$

16,524,031

Unfunded
Actuarial
Liability
$

3,101,604

Covered
Payroll

Funded Ratio
81%

Unfunded
Liability as
Percentage of
Covered Payroll

$

10,795,530

28.7%

7/1/2013

17,609,101

17,356,805

(252,296)

102%

11,865,168

-2.1%

7/1/2015

20,917,103

21,658,172

741,069

97%

11,599,764

6.4%

As of June 30, 2016, the fund balance in the California Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust Program
(CERBT) was $2,117,203.
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13. RISK MANAGEMENT
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft, damage, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disaster. The District joined together with other
entities to form the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA), a public entity risk
pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 54 member
entities. The purpose of CSRMA is to spread the adverse effects of losses among the member entities and
to purchase excess insurance as a group, thereby reducing its cost. The District pays annual premiums to
CSRMA for its general, liability, and property damage and workers compensation insurance.
CSRMA is governed by a Board comprised of one representative from each member agency. The
Board controls the operations of CSRMA including selection of management and approval of
operating budgets, independent of any influence by member entities.
In addition to the primary insurance types provided for through CSRMA listed above, the District
also maintains commercial fidelity bonds, public employee dishonesty and public official bonds, to
protect against employee theft or defalcation. Settled claims for CSRMA or commercial fidelity bonds
have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
The following is a summary of the insurance policies carried by the District as of June 30, 2016:

Company Name

Insurance Program
Type of Coverage

Ironshore Specialty Insurance Co.

Excess liability

Public Entity Property Insurance Program

Special form property

Illinois Union Insurance Company

Public entity pollution liability

Lloyd's of London

Cyber liability coverage

Travelers Property and Casualty

Public official bond

National Union Fire Insurance Co.

Employee theft and fraud

Travelers Property and Casualty

Identity theft

Safety National Casualty Corporation

Excess workers' compensation

Limits
$

Deductibles

10,000,000

None

147,180,766

25,000

25,000,000

None

2,000,000

None

100,000

None

2,000,000

2,500

25,000

-

Statutory

None

Pooled Insurance Program
CSRMA Pooled

Bodily injury and property damageauto, errors and omissions and
employment practices

CSRMA Pooled Workers' Compensation

Workers' compensation

$

15,500,000
750,000

$

100,000
None

Prior to July 1, 1994, the District was self-insured for workers’ compensation and will continue to be
responsible for any claims existing as of that date.
Claims and judgments, including provision for claims incurred but not reported, are recorded when a loss
is deemed probable of assertion and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable. As discussed
above, the District has coverage for such claims, but it had retained the risk for the deductible or
uninsured portion of these claims.
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13. RISK MANAGEMENT, Continued
The District’s liability for uninsured claims is limited to workers’ compensation and general liability
claims, as discussed above, and was estimated by a third party claims administrator based on prior years
claims experience as follows:
2016
Balance at July 1
Net change in liability for claims and
claims incurred but not reported

$

Claims paid
Balance at June 30

$

56,613

2015
$

253,384

470,671

82,931

(235,335)

(279,702)

291,949

$

56,613

The District has not exceeded its insurance coverage limits in any of the last three years. The District
liability is included in accrued expenses on the financial statements.
14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The District purchases water from the Alameda County Flood Control and Water Conservation District
(Zone 7) under a thirty-year contract, which expires August 23, 2024. Under the terms of the contract,
subject to various exceptions, the District is required to purchase all of its water from Zone 7. During fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016, the District’s water purchases from Zone 7 amounted to $9,279,032.
The District is a defendant in a number of lawsuits, which have arisen in the normal course of business. In
the opinion of the District, these actions when finally adjudicated will not have a material adverse effect
on the financial position of the District.
The District operates a Dedicated Land Disposal (DLD) site upon which the District processes bio solids
produced by the District’s wastewater treatment plant. On August 8, 2007, the San Francisco Bay Regional
Water Quality Control Board issued Waste Discharge Requirements, which require the District to provide
assurances of financial responsibility for initiating and completing corrective action for known and
reasonably foreseeable releases from the Dedicated Land Disposal site. The District prepared an analysis
in September 2016 to determine the closure and post closure costs of the DLD, which include (1)
continuing all operations necessary to maximize degradation, transformation, or immobilization of waste
constituents within the treatment zone; (2) continue all groundwater and unsaturated zone monitoring (3)
continue all operations in the treatment zone to prevent runoff of waste constituents; and (4) maintain the
precipitation and drainage control systems for a period of 30 years. Actual closure and post-closure care
costs may be higher, lower, or even not required due to inflation variances, changes in technology, or
changes in State or Federal regulations.
The present value of these closure and post closure costs, discounted at 5 percent amounted to $1,613,000
as of June 30, 2016. The District is required by State and federal laws and regulations to make annual
funding contributions to finance closure and post-closure care. The District is in compliance with these
requirements for the year ended June 30, 2016 with the establishment of the fully-funded liability for this
purpose.
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SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
2016
Proportion of the net pension liability

2015

0.185007%

0.220496%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

$ 12,698,750

$ 13,720,257

Covered payroll

$ 12,009,479

$ 11,779,808

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as percentage of covered
payroll
Plan's fiduciary net position

105.74%
$ 72,030,535

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability

116.47%
$ 67,123,838

78.40%

79.82%

Notes to Schedule:
Benefit changes. The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan
changes which occurred after the June 30, 2014 valuation date. This applies to for voluntary benefit changes
as well as any offers of two years additional service credit (a.k.a Golden Handshakes).
Changes in assumptions. The discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense)
to 7.65 percent to correct for an adjustment to exclude administrative expense
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
2016

2015

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined)
Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess)

2,120,252
7,120,252
(5,000,000)

1,716,224
6,716,224
(5,000,000)

Covered payroll

12,033,906

12,009,479

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

59.17%

55.92%

6/30/2013

6/30/2012

Note to schedule
Valuation date

POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
Trend data from the actuarial studies is presented below:
Unfunded

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
7/1/2011

Entry Age
Actuarial
Liability

Actuarial
Asset
$ 13,422,427

$

16,524,031

Unfunded
Actuarial
Liability
$

3,101,604

Funded
Ratio
81%

Covered
Payroll
$

10,795,530

Liability as
Percentage of
Covered Payroll
28.7%

7/1/2013

17,609,101

17,356,805

(252,296)

102%

11,865,168

-2.1%

7/1/2015

20,917,103

21,658,172

741,069

97%

11,599,764

6.4%
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Statistical Overview
The statistics in this section provide context to help
readers understand what the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information
reveal about the District’s overall financial health. In
contrast to the Financial Section, information in the
Statistical Section is not subject to an independent audit.

Demographic and Economic
Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic
indicators to help the reader understand the
environment in which the District’s financial activities
take place.
1. City of Dublin principal employers
2. Demographic and economic indicators

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help
the reader understand how the District’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help
the reader assess the affordability of the District’s
outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional debt in
the future.
1. Pledged-revenue coverage
2. Outstanding debt by type

1. Changes in net position
2. Total revenues
3. Total expenses
4. Net position by component

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the
reader assess the District’s most significant local revenue
sources.
1. Water by type of customer
2. Principal customers

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure
data to help the reader understand how the information
in the District’s financial report relates to the services
the District provides and activities it performs.
1. Wastewater average daily effluent flow
2. Water consumption and connections
3. Authorized full-time equivalent District employees
by function
4. Capital assets by function/program

3. Water and sewer rates
Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these
schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the relevant year.
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CITY OF DUBLIN PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS - Fiscal Year 2015 and Eight Years Prior
2007
Employer
United States Government
& Federal Correctional Institution

20151

Employees

Rank

Employees

Rank

2,133

1

2,100

1

Ross Store Headquarters

N/A

N/A

1,200

2

Dublin Unified School District

583

4

1,117

3

SAP (Formerly Sybase Corporation)

664

3

604

4

Zeiss Meditec

700

2

535

5

County of Alameda

486

5

465

6

Target

150

10

388

7

Callidus Cloud

N/A

N/A

350

8

De Silva Gates Construction

N/A

N/A

300

9

Safeway

450

6

284

10

Micro Dental Laboratories

319

7

N/A

N/A

City of Dublin

218

8

N/A

N/A

Franklin Templeton Investments

170

9

N/A

N/A

1. Information for 2016 was not yet available at the time this report was prepared.
Source: City of Dublin, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015.
Note: Information regarding City of Dublin principal employers is not available for years prior to 2007 and percent of total
employment was not available.
Note: Information regarding principal employers for the portions of the City of San Ramon within District boundaries is not
readily available. The largest known employer within District boundaries is the San Ramon Valley Unified School District, with full
time staffing of 887 (Source: California Department of Education, DataQuest 2015-16).
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INDICATORS - Last Ten Calendar Years
Calendar Year

City of Dublin
Population2,4

Alameda County
Personal Income1

Alameda County
Per Capita Personal
Income1

City of Dublin
Unemployment
Rate3

2007

41,309

70,067,569

48,133

2.80%

2008

44,321

71,401,307

48,335

3.70%

2009

45,104

68,214,624

45,521

6.40%

2010

46,036

70,374,092

46,494

7.00%

2011

46,207

75,973,983

49,575

6.40%

2012

46,730

80,530,232

51,746

5.50%

2013

49,932

85,173,987

53,798

4.60%

2014

53,462

90,631,392

56,261

3.70%

2015

55,844

101,370,460

61,879

2.90%

2016

57,349

N/A5

N/A5

2.70%

Calendar Year

City of San Ramon
Population2,4

Contra Costa County
Personal Income1

Contra Costa County
Per Capita Personal
Income1

City of San Ramon
Unemployment
Rate3

2007

64,173

57,669,221

57,146

1.90%

2008

66,642

58,744,241

57,404

2.50%

2009

69,428

55,297,574

53,279

4.20%

2010

72,148

56,111,631

53,293

7.50%

2011

73,111

60,709,126

56,919

7.00%

2012

74,753

66,153,748

61,290

6.10%

2013

76,429

66,728,681

60,885

5.00%

2014

77,270

70,849,779

63,752

4.10%

2015

77,470

74,756,916

66,348

3.30%

2016

78,363

N/A5

N/A5

3.00%

Source
1. United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, “CA1-3 Personal income summary” (two-year lag).
Last updated: November 17, 2016 - new estimates for 2015, revised estimates for 1998-2014.
2. State of California, Department of Finance, “E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the State, January 2011-2016, with 2010 Benchmark.”
Released: May 1, 2016.
3. State of California, Employment Development Department, Unemployment Rates (Labor Force) (one-year lag)
Last updated: September 2016.
4. State of California, Department of Finance, “E-8 Historical Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the State, 1990-2000”
Last updated: August 2007; revised estimates for 2005-2009.
5. 2016 data not available.
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Financial Trends
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual basis of accounting, amounts expressed in thousands)
2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

$15,270

$16,687

$16,222

$23,320

$25,644

18,437

18,140

22,196

19,379

19,305

$33,707

$34,827

$38,418

$42,699

$44,949

Water

18,995

23,377

24,183

23,831

23,017

Wastewater

22,768

28,692

29,787

24,023

24,160

$41,763

$52,069

$53,970

$47,854

$47,177

($8,056)

($17,242)

($15,552)

($5,155)

($2,228)

Operating Revenues
Water
Wastewater
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses

Net Operating Revenue (Expense)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest earnings

6,685

5,492

1,767

408

488

Interest expense

(2,201)

(2,036)

(1,853)

(2,110)

(2,044)

Non-operating revenue (expenses)

(1,917)

Non-cash contributions

22

0

3,497

3,472

6,695

6,982

2,525

14,063

10,292

2,381

10,373

28,393

$20,127

$17,242

$8,991

$15,645

$29,363

$12,071

$0

($6,561)

$10,490

$27,135

Capital contributions
Total non operating revenue (expenses)

Change in Net Position

(8)

1

Source: Dublin San Ramon Services District audited financial statements.

continued on next page >>
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2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

$26,239

$28,557

$30,576

$29,043

$29,627

21,073

22,699

22,904

24,333

24,804

$47,312

$51,256

$53,480

$53,376

$54,431

Water

26,979

26,857

30,994

27,486

26,147

Wastewater

29,657

28,338

28,800

28,754

29,609

$56,636

$55,195

$59,794

$56,240

$55,756

($9,324)

($3,939)

($6,314)

($2,864)

($1,325)

Operating Revenues
Water
Wastewater
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses

Net Operating (Expenses)/Revenues
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest earnings

625

149

1,376

958

1,639

Interest expense

(2,637)

(2,555)

(2,470)

(2,362)

(1,929)

Non-operating revenue (expenses)
Non-cash contributions
Capital contributions
Total non operating revenue (expenses)

Change in Net Position
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0

0

0

0
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2,262

1,294

4,735

4,983

1,461

18,752

18,786

13,094

29,905

34,462

$19,002

$17,674

$16,735

$33,484

$35,681

$9,678

$13,735

$10,421

$30,620

$34,356
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Financial Trends
TOTAL REVENUE SOURCES
Last Ten Fiscal Years
$100
$90
$80

Millions

$70
$60
$50
$40
$30
$20
$10
$0
2007
WW Svc Chgs

2008

2009

Water Sales

2010
Other

2011

2012

Interest

2013

2014

2015

Capacity Fees

2016

Assessment District

REVENUE SOURCES FOR FISCAL YEARS 2007 THROUGH 2016
Fiscal
Year
Ending
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Total

Wastewater
Service Charges

Water Sales

Other

Interest

Capacity Fees

Assessment
District

2007

57,953,136

16,804,542

12,282,851

7,705,369

6,684,883

14,063,483

412,008

2008

54,083,351

16,093,655

14,082,681

7,639,390

5,492,130

10,292,687

482,808

2009

49,262,735

16,041,196

14,175,310

14,526,502

1,767,344

2,381,361

371,022

2010

60,462,212

16,408,731

19,611,829

12,756,898

408,371

10,373,084

903,299

2011

76,356,032

16,884,902

20,891,831

8,516,871

488,302

28,393,312

1,180,814

2012

68,952,117

18,969,087

21,640,712

7,576,565

625,049

18,752,586

1,388,118

2013

71,486,077

20,112,373

23,255,332

7,718,153

149,815

18,786,036

1,464,368

2014

72,685,508

20,772,099

24,992,374

10,945,880

1,376,221

13,093,842

1,505,092

2015

89,223,380

21,547,608

23,186,190

12,083,855

958,042

29,905,253

1,542,432

2016

92,041,189

22,092,217

23,280,944

9,019,081

1,639,420

34,462,453

1,547,074

STATISTICAL SECTION

Financial Trends
TOTAL EXPENSES SOURCES
Last Ten Fiscal Years
$70
$60

Millions

$50
$40
$30
$20
$10
$0

2007

2008

Personnel

2009

2010

Materials

2011

2012

Contract Services

2013
Other

2014

2015

Depreciation

2016
Interest

EXPENSES FOR FISCAL YEARS 200 THROUGH 2016
Fiscal
Year
Ending

Total

Personnel

Materials

Contract
Services

Other

Depreciation

Interest

2007

45,882,332

13,828,974

9,424,585

11,671,270

2,544,129

6,212,258

2,201,116

20081

54,082,761

16,004,939

10,679,183

18,261,684

238,494

6,862,186

2,036,275

2009

55,823,429

17,081,847

10,581,411

18,900,769

181,038

7,225,032

1,853,332

2010

49,972,096

15,369,761

10,551,281

13,985,129

192,824

7,762,616

2,110,485

2011

49,221,233

15,378,331

10,748,308

12,196,360

213,390

8,640,393

2,044,451

2012

59,273,573

21,076,414

12,169,667

13,108,236

337,681

9,944,178

2,637,397

2013

57,750,624

16,751,956

13,249,757

14,132,427

301,282

10,760,074

2,555,128

2014

62,264,504

16,929,786

13,532,408

17,983,580

448,169

10,900,456

2,470,105

2015

58,603,008

16,979,110

11,017,393

16,312,937

650,624

11,280,429

2,362,515

2016

57,685,168

16,894,079

12,404,304

14,363,125

487,478

11,607,463

1,928,719

1. In 2008, the accounting method was changed to report all costs for joint powers authorities (JPA) as contract services.
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Financial Trends
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual basis of accounting, amounts expressed in thousands)

$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$0
2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Invested in capital assets

2012
Restricted

2013

2014

2015

2016

Unrestricted

Business-Type
Activities

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Net investment
in capital assets

$187,278

$207,889

$227,411

$234,708

$233,124

$231,488

$233,439

$234,213

$246,295

$254,961

Restricted

52,628

42,015

25,124

22,193

35,089

43,991

48,384

49,300

53,210

70,100

Unrestricted

74,749

48,799

39,607

45,731

61,554

63,967

71,358

80,089

77,530

86,331

$314,655

$298,703

$292,142

$302,632

$329,767

$339,446

$353,181

$363,602

$377,035

$411,392

Total net
position

Source: Dublin San Ramon Services District audited financial statements.
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Revenue Capacity
WATER BY TYPE OF CUSTOMER
Last Ten Fiscal Years (amounts in thousand ccf)
3,000

Thousand ccf's

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

0

2007

2008

2009

2010

Residential

Fiscal Year
Ending

2011

2012

Commercial

2013
Irrigation

2014

2015

2016

Recycled

Type of Customer
Residential

Commercial

Irrigation

Recycled

Total

2007

2,194

1,611

651

572

5,028

2008

2,178

1,505

657

866

5,207

2009

2,221

1,394

668

775

5,059

2010

2,106

1,158

590

825

4,679

2011

2,121

1,138

614

793

4,666

2012

2,342

1,158

622

888

5,009

2013

2,320

1,231

672

1,018

5,241

2014

2,569

1,267

689

1,082

5,607

2015

1,831

1,106

295

1,136

4,368

2016

1,695

1,080

294

886

3,955

Source: Dublin San Ramon Services District audited financial statements.
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Revenue Capacity
PRINCIPAL CUSTOMERS
Last Ten Fiscal Years
2007
Customer
City of Pleasanton
Federal Correctional Institution
Alameda County General Services Agency

2016
Percent of Total
Annual Billings

Annual Billing

Rank

Percent of Total
Annual Billings

Annual Billing

Rank

$7,404,496

1

25.5%

$9,568,959

1

21.1%

871,527

3

3.0%

2,098,459

2

4.6%

1,311,454

2

4.5%

1,472,898

3

3.2%

1,181,833

4

2.6%

City of San Ramon
City of Dublin

280,075

6

1.0%

896,631

5

2.0%

Dublin Ranch Golf Course

269,259

7

0.9%

424,396

6

0.9%

Dublin Unified School District

171,566

8

0.6%

413,922

7

0.9%

Avalon Bay Communities

318,938

8

0.7%

San Ramon Valley Unified School District

299,597

9

0.7%

223,971

10

0.5%

Amador Lakes Apartments

264,472

5

0.9%

Kiewitt Pacific

161,687

10

0.6%

USAG CSTC

544,234

4

1.9%

Shea Homes

177,394

9

0.6%

All Other

Total

17,631,231

$29,087,395

60.6%

28,473,558

62.8%

100.0%

$45,373,162

100.0%

(1) Customers included in “All Other” when listed individually make up less than 0.5% of Total Annual Billings.
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Revenue Capacity
WATER AND SEWER RATES
Last Ten Fiscal Years
200.00
180.00
160.00
140.00
120.00
100.00
80.00
60.00
40.00
20.00
0.00
2007

2008

2009

DSRSD Fixed Meter Charge

2010

2011

2012

DSRSD Consumption

2013

2014

Zone 7 Charge

Water Bimonthly1
Fiscal Year
Ending

Notes:

DSRSD Fixed
Meter Charge

DSRSD
Consumption
Charge

2015

2016

Sewer Bimonthly Billing

Sewer Bimonthly

Zone 7 Charge

Total
Water

Base Rate

2007

16.00

16.95

48.18

81.13

53.50

2008

16.00

18.60

52.14

86.74

51.10

2009

16.00

20.25

61.05

97.30

48.68

2010

16.03

27.62

69.63

113.28

49.07

2011

16.18

27.95

71.28

115.41

54.80

2012

16.66

28.74

74.91

120.31

57.51

2013

17.12

29.73

74.91

121.76

59.24

2014

32.56

29.94

76.89

139.39

60.42

2015

33.54

30.83

79.20

143.57

63.73

2016

34.31

31.39

108.572

174.27

63.73

Water rates are based on a 5/8-inch meter, which is the standard size household meter.
The average water usage for residential customers varies year to year; 33 CCF is used for historical comparisons only.
Bills are calculated based on normal conditions.
1. For consistency, the Temporary Infrastucture Charge adopted June 23, 2009 and effective for fiscal years 2010 to 2012 is not included.
2. FY2016 Zone 7 Charge includes 0.57 cents/ccf “temporary conservation surcharge.”

Source: Dublin San Ramon Services District.
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Debt Capacity
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
Ending

1997
Revenue Refunding
Bonds

2007

16.56%

2008

11.83

2009

3.51

2010

9.93

2009
Sewer Refunding
Bonds

2011
Water Bond

2011
LAVWMA
Obligation

8.75%

2011

7.54

13.46%

2012

6.80

2.64

3.39%

2013

7.80

3.95

5.21

2014

7.40

3.33

5.51

2015

4.83

7.23

2016

7.20

7.50

Note: Details regarding current outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Business-Type Activities
Sewer COP
Sewer
Certificates
Refunding
of
Bonds
Participation

Total

Estimated
Population
Served

Debt
per
Capita

0

53,000,000

150,015

353

0

0

38,475,000

154,015

250

0

0

0

35,428,500

155,015

229

0

17,720,457

0

0

30,110,457

156,015

193

0

0

16,179,635

35,620,000

0

51,799,635

156,515

331

0

0

0

14,570,586

35,620,000

40,975,094

91,165,680

157,000

581

2013

0

0

0

12,890,289

35,620,000

39,343,403

87,853,692

157,000

560

2014

0

0

0

11,135,590

35,360,000

38,055,942

84,551,532

159,000

532

2015

0

0

0

0

35,090,000

36,700,412

71,790,412

171,000

420

2016

0

0

0

0

34,810,000

35,276,816

70,086,816

173,000

405

Fiscal
Year
Ending

1997
Refunding
Revenue
Bonds

WateReuse
Revenue
Bonds

2007

3,640,000

13,860,000

35,500,000

2008

1,475,000

13,385,000

2009

1,280,000

2010

2011
Water Bonds

2011
LAVWMA
Obligation

0

0

23,615,000

0

12,895,000

21,253,500

0

12,390,000

2011

0

2012

Note: Debt amounts exclude any premiums, discounts, or other amortization amounts.
Sources: Dublin San Ramon Services District audited financial statements.
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Operating Information
WASTEWATER AVERAGE DAILY EFFLUENT FLOW
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Million Gallons per Day (MGD)

14.00
13.00
12.00
11.00
10.00
9.00
8.00

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Fiscal Year
Ending

Wastewater
Avg. Daily Flow (MGD)

Wastewater
Total Annual Flow (MG)

2007

11.65

4,267

2008

10.87

3,979

2009

10.13

3,708

2010

11.04

4,039

2011

11.43

4,182

2012

11.60

4,245

2013

11.19

4,083

2014

10.26

3,745

2015

9.75

3,547

2016

9.99

3,646

2015

2016

Source: Dublin San Ramon Services District Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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Operating Information
WATER CONSUMPTION AND CONNECTIONS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

25,000

12,000

20,000

10,000
8,000

15,000

6,000

10,000

4,000
5,000

2,000
0

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Consumption

2014

2015

2016

Number of Connections

Consumption - Acre Feet (AF)

14,000

0

Connections

Source: Dublin San Ramon Services District

Fiscal Year
Ending

Water Consumption (AF)

Number of Connections

2007

11,543

15,706

2008

11,954

16,357

2009

11,614

17,042

2010

10,741

17,681

2011

10,713

18,119

2012

11,500

18,777

2013

12,031

19,754

2014

12,873

20,532

2015

10,027

21,434

2016

9,079

21,722

Source: Dublin San Ramon Services District (includes potable and recycled water).
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Operating Information
AUTHORIZED FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES
BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Function/Program
Office of the
General Manager

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

6.50

8.00

8.00

8.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

2.00

2.00

1.50

4.50

4.50

Administrative Services
Organizational Services

9.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

6.00

5.50

5.50

Human Resources

4.50

Public Information

2.50

4.50

4.50

4.50

4.50

3.50

3.50

3.50

3.50

3.50

Safety

1.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

Financial Services

8.50

8.00

8.00

8.00

7.00

6.00

6.00

5.00

5.00

4.00

Customer Services

5.50

7.00

7.00

7.00

7.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

Information Services

4.00

5.00

5.00

5.50

4.00

4.75

5.00

5.00

6.00

6.00

Engineering and
Construction

19.00

19.00

19.00

23.00

21.00

21.00

21.00

22.00

22.00

22.50

Operations
Administration

5.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

Field Operations

15.50

15.50

15.50

13.00

11.00

11.00

11.00

11.00

11.00

12.00

Plant Operations

15.00

17.00

17.00

16.50

12.00

12.00

12.00

12.00

12.00

12.00

Maintenance Services

20.00

21.00

21.00

23.00

21.00

21.00

21.00

22.00

22.00

22.00

Environmental Services

13.00

13.00

13.00

7.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

124.50

134.00

134.00

131.50

110.50

108.75

109.00

112.00

113.00

113.00

47.00

49.00

51.00

58.00

61.00

63.00

66.00

67.00

69.00

74.00

Total
Retirees1

1. Retirees with medical benefit coverage. Information prior to 2007 is not readily available.
Source: Dublin San Ramon Services District Operating Budget.
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Operating Information
CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years
2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Miles of potable
water mains

253.0

262.0

281.0

281.0

282.0

290.3

298.9

305.1

307.0

307.8

Miles of recycled
water mains

51.0

51.0

51.0

55.0

55.0

55.6

60.1

61.1

62.0

63.7

Number of potable
water reservoirs

13

14

14

14

14

14

14

14

14

14

Storage capacity
potable water
(millions of gallons)

24.8

25.4

25.4

25.4

25.4

27.1

27.1

27.1

27.1

27.1

Number of recycled
water reservoirs

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

Storage capacity
recycled water
(millions of gallons)

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

Miles of sanitary
sewers

174.3

178.0

185.5

186.0

188.0

188.4

200.9

205.0

205.0

206.0

Number of
treatment plants

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

Water

Wastewater

Treatment capacity
(millions of gallons
per day)

Source: Dublin San Ramon Services District.
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District Service Area Map
Regional View
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